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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good afternoon.

          3    Thank you all for coming.  My name is Jim Gennaro,

          4  Chair on the Council's Committee of Environmental

          5  Protection, and today we are holding a hearing on

          6  Intro. 626.  A legislation that seeks to ensure the

          7  long- term protection of the City's drinking water

          8  supply. Drinking water, as we all know, is the life

          9  blood of New York City.

         10                 By the way, I would like to thank the

         11  people from DEP for bringing their daily 1.3 billion

         12  gallons a day into our fair city, thank you, thank

         13  you, David, I appreciate that.  Each day millions of

         14  City residents, and visitors alike, are sustained by

         15  about 1.3 billion gallons of pure, healthy, drinking

         16  water. This water is derived from reservoirs and

         17  lakes in our over 1 million- acre watershed that

         18  extends 125 miles north and west of the City.  About

         19  90 percent of the water, as most of us in this room

         20  know, come from the Catskill/Delaware System, West

         21  of Hudson.

         22                 The quality of New York City's

         23  drinking water both now and in the future is

         24  therefore linked to the protection of this

         25  watershed.  And experts, including the National
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          2  Research Council, overwhelmingly agree that the

          3  single, most effective way to protect the watershed

          4  is by protecting watershed land.  The protection of

          5  watershed lands has never been more critical as

          6  Upstate areas face new and ever rising development

          7  pressures.

          8                 What hangs in the balance regarding

          9  our ability to adequately protect these watershed

         10  lands, and ultimately the quality of the City's

         11  water supply, is the possibility that the USEPA

         12  could require the filtration of water from the

         13  Cat\Del System.  Filtration of the system would cost

         14  an estimated $6 billion or more to build with an

         15  additional $500 million per year to operate and

         16  maintain.  Clearly to ensure the continued high

         17  quality of the City's drinking water, as well as to

         18  avoid the truly budget bursting cost of filtration,

         19  it is imperative that we do whatever is necessary to

         20  protect our watershed land for years to come.

         21                 The bill we are hearing today seeks

         22  to focus attention on this critical issue, the

         23  City's long- term watershed protection efforts.  But

         24  raising this issue should certainly not be

         25  interpreted as a criticism of DEP's efforts to date.
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          2    On the contrary, the Department certainly deserves

          3  to be richly applauded for the many successes of its

          4  Watershed Protection program.  A program that has

          5  for the past 8 years protected about 7,500 acres of

          6  watershed land each year.

          7                 At the same time, however, it is

          8  important that we look to the future.  We talk about

          9  how we can make sure in the face of an ever

         10  increasing Upstate Development pressures that the

         11  City's land protection momentum is sustained.

         12                 The bill we are hearing today

         13  proposes that we sustain this momentum by setting

         14  out as a goal the continued protection of 7,500

         15  acres of land in the Catskill Watershed each year

         16  for the next 10 years.  Such a goal, as opposed to a

         17  mandate, serves the City as a planning and

         18  management tool, a guide for good faith efforts

         19  toward making sure that funding, staffing, and other

         20  critical elements are in place for continued, long-

         21  term, successful, watershed protection.

         22                 I recognize that even such a soft

         23  target as the proposed 10- year land protection goal

         24  has generated concerns.  I welcome the opportunity

         25  to talk about these concerns today, and also after
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          2  today's hearing.  I also wish to send a very special

          3  welcome to people from the Upstate Community who

          4  have come to join us here today.  They are, you

          5  know, truly are you know partners in watershed

          6  protection and, you know, nothing that this bill

          7  tries to do, in any way do we want to interfere with

          8  that partnership.

          9                 I also welcome the opportunity to

         10  hear thoughts on how after the establishment of such

         11  a goal we get together, make sure that successful

         12  watershed protection continues into the future.

         13                 I would like to now turn quickly to

         14  two other very important elements of the bill.

         15                 First, this Committee recognizes that

         16  the DEP Police Force, and we thank Chief Welsh for

         17  being here today, plays one of the most important

         18  roles in making sure the quality of the City's water

         19  supply, that of protecting our vital infrastructure

         20  and other watershed lands from pollution, vandalism,

         21  and other threats.  To this end, this bill proposes

         22  that DEP report to the Council on its plans to

         23  promote, retention, adequate pay, and better

         24  communication systems for the DEP Police Force.

         25                 Second, this bill recognizes that the
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          2  City Council has responsibility toward consumers,

          3  and ratepayers to play a role in the development of

          4  DEP's Long- Term Watershed Land Protection Program

          5  document, which is a document that the USEPA will

          6  use to determine whether to continue to extend its

          7  filtration waiver for the Cat\Del System.  This bill

          8  proposes to formalize the Council's role, making

          9  sure that the Council has an adequate opportunity to

         10  review and comment, but not vote on, this document.

         11                 As I said before, in order to make

         12  sure that the continued high quality of the City's

         13  water, of the City's drinking water, as well as to

         14  avoid the budget bursting cost of filtration, it is

         15  imperative that we do whatever is necessary to

         16  protect our watershed land for years to come.  And

         17  it is my hope that today's hearing will start a

         18  serious and fruitful dialogue on this critical

         19  issue.

         20                 And I just want to recognize the

         21  special relationship that I have forged with the

         22  good people from the DEP, and it is wonderful to

         23  work with those people who are so deeply committed

         24  and so effective in protecting this most vital

         25  resource.  So we thank you for being here today, and
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          2  all the people who will be giving testimony here

          3  today.  You know we are very grateful to have the

          4  benefit of your views.  We also have Bill Harding

          5  here, who is not going to be testifying, but you

          6  know a good friend and is very, very committed to

          7  the watershed, and thank you for being here, Bill.

          8                 I would also like to thank in a

          9  special way the Counsel to the Committee, Donna De

         10  Costanzo, Richard Colon, the Policy Analyst for the

         11  Committee, and my own excellent Chief of Staff,

         12  Peter Washburn for his efforts on this bill and all

         13  the matters before the Committee.

         14                 And so with that said, I would like

         15  to welcome the first panel.  We have representatives

         16  from New York City's DEP. I wish to thank Dave

         17  Tweedy and all of his good people for being here

         18  today.  You know, thank you for your partnership,

         19  and I very much look forward to hearing your views.

         20                 So Donna will swear in the witnesses,

         21  and then you can identify yourself and the members

         22  of your panel, and proceed with your good testimony.

         23    I would also like to thank Chris Manning for the

         24  efforts he gives this Committee and making these

         25  hearings possible.  So, thank you, thank you,
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          2  Commissioner.

          3                 Oh yes, pardon me, we have been

          4  joined by Margarita Lopez and Oliver Koppell, both

          5  valued members of this Committee, and also, Dennis

          6  Gallagher.  And also Council Member Arroyo, we will

          7  put her in the category of the valued Council

          8  members.

          9                 Okay, Donna will do the oath, and

         10  then you can proceed with your testimony.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         12  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         13  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         14  the truth?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I

         16  do.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         19  Chairman, thank you.  On behalf of Commissioner

         20  Lloyd, who could not be here today, I am pleased to

         21  be hear to offer some testimony regarding 626.  We

         22  are handing in a rather detailed response for the

         23  record, and I also have for you, personally, hot off

         24  the press, a copy of the 2004 Annual Report on the

         25  filtration avoidance.  We can get as many copies as

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you would like, and this should be for the record as

          3  well.  It is also available on DEP's Internet site

          4  for anyone who wants to look at it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  thank you.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I

          8  would first like to introduce my comrades here, Mark

          9  Hoffer our Senior Counsel, Chief Welsh, who you

         10  mentioned earlier, and some Executives from our

         11  Water Supply Bureau, Ira Stern, David Tobias, and

         12  David Worn is over in the corner, as well as our

         13  usual offenders, Mark Lanigan and Charlie Sturcken.

         14                 Again, we are pleased to be here, and

         15  my remarks will be brief in summary form.  We would

         16  like to start by thanking the Council, and you,

         17  personally, in your leadership role, I don't think

         18  it is an exaggeration to say from the eighties when

         19  filtration avoidance and all the hard work that has

         20  been done on this program over the years was, the

         21  early years of formulation the City Council has

         22  played a critical role, continues to play a critical

         23  role, and I think at DEP it is consensus that we

         24  would not have the successful program we have

         25  without your guidance, oversight, and good thoughts.
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          2    So we appreciate it, and we are happy to be here

          3  today.

          4                 Unfortunately, we do not support,

          5  however, as you are aware already, this legislation.

          6    And I am just going to offer a couple of thoughts

          7  on each section of it.  Before I do, in summary our

          8  concern really comes down to two ideas.

          9                 The first being, we think the program

         10  is successful, as you alluded to earlier.  We are in

         11  the second five- year program.  We have tensions, we

         12  have plenty of work on an ongoing basis, but I think

         13  any objective view of the MOA and the filtration

         14  avoidance process would deem this a tremendous

         15  success.  Our land acquisition program, and again,

         16  all the details are laid out in our written

         17  testimony, has been extremely successful on a

         18  willing buyer/willing seller basis.  We have had

         19  really an extraordinary result, and it is partnered

         20  with the great work we have done in programs

         21  remediating and upgrading the waster water treatment

         22  facilities Upstate, the Agricultural programs that

         23  are in place, a number of economic incentive

         24  programs.

         25                 I mean, I really think that
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          2  objectively the MOA program and the filtration

          3  avoidance program as an ongoing program is as

          4  successful a program as one would find in the City

          5  right now.  And therefore, the question really is,

          6  why pose new hurdles and new burdens on it?  So that

          7  is one concern, if it is not broke, why fix it?

          8                 The second, sort of thematic concern

          9  has to do with legislative versus executive

         10  discretion.  The ongoing need to maintain our

         11  relationships with the watershed partners to

         12  renegotiate the FADs on a periodic basis require

         13  much like complex labor negotiations, a) on the

         14  amount of executive discretion that we feel that

         15  this bill would impair.  It is a difficult process,

         16  obviously, a very worthwhile one.  But any

         17  legislative action that would impair the

         18  Commissioner's ability to, on an ongoing basis

         19  negotiate freely and with enough discretion to be

         20  effective, is a cause of real concern to our agency

         21  and to the City.

         22                 So those are sort of overall and

         23  thematically our concerns.

         24                 Now just some individual comments.

         25  In terms of the land acquisition goal, as you said,
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          2  it is 7,500 acres a year. Just some particular

          3  concerns.  The MOA not only specified the overall

          4  goals of the Land Acquisition Program, but it

          5  prescribes the process for targeting properties for

          6  acquisition, the manner of soliciting properties,

          7  the appraisal of properties, and how local

          8  communities are notified of proposed City

          9  acquisitions within their jurisdictions.

         10                 Intro. 626 would, without the consent

         11  or discretion of other MOA parties, superimposing

         12  new goal on the MOA.  That goal to require an

         13  additional 75,000 acres in the Cat\Del Watershed

         14  between 2007 and 2017.  There are several

         15  significant defects from our point of view in this

         16  proposal.

         17                 First, it is inconsistent with the

         18  MOA.  The MOA parties emphatically did not agree to

         19  any specific goals for the City's acquisition of

         20  watershed lands, because the program is based on the

         21  availability of willing sellers.  Identifying a goal

         22  for acres acquired, and especially within a specific

         23  time frame is not compatible with the MOA's

         24  direction that the City should only purchase

         25  properties that an owner is willing to sell at full,
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          2  fair market value as determined by an appraisal.

          3                 Secondly, the goal itself may not be

          4  reasonable or meaningful in terms of water quality

          5  science.  DEP uses a science- based approach using

          6  natural features as a criteria to target

          7  solicitation of lands that have a high value for

          8  water quality protection.  Mandating DEP to focus on

          9  an acreage target, may lead to the acquisition of

         10  land that is less valuable for water quality

         11  protection to meet an arbitrary number of 75,000

         12  acres by 2017.  DEP scientists and other specialists

         13  develop land acquisition priorities to guide our

         14  land acquisition program. These classifications are

         15  memorialized in the MOA and are predicated upon

         16  where the land is in relationship to the reservoir

         17  or distribution system.

         18                 So again, this sort of gets to the

         19  legislation as proposed, from our point of view,

         20  being more harm than good. Great intent absolutely

         21  consistent with the City's and this agency's

         22  priority, which is protecting the watershed, but it

         23  is in the how we go about that, how we work with our

         24  partners Upstate, and how, frankly, in a softer

         25  approach, if you will, we can work with the
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          2  marketplace in the most effective manner.

          3                 In terms of the proposals regarding

          4  the DEP Police, again, City Council absolutely good

          5  intention.  We had in the early years a difficulty

          6  maintaining the force in terms of attrition, we have

          7  done a lot better, and for the record, I give Chief

          8  Welsh a tremendous amount of credit.  We built a

          9  professional force, the morale is good, the recent

         10  victory, the legal victory confirming DEP Police's

         11  jurisdiction in the watershed, it is going to be, I

         12  think, a real help for us.  And so the intent here

         13  of helping us, whether it is in salary equity, or in

         14  other ways, improve our ability to an ongoing basis

         15  make that Police Force and our security profile

         16  Upstate stronger and stronger, absolutely a goal of

         17  this agency.  It comes down to how one goes about

         18  it, and what responsibility the agency effectively

         19  has and doesn't have in terms of collective

         20  bargaining and other things.

         21                 We continue to look for ways to

         22  improve security measures, and we have disclosed

         23  publicly some of the strides in doing so.

         24  Improvements to our watershed protection efforts

         25  have included substantial expansion in
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          2  modernization, which includes a vulnerability and

          3  risk analysis assessment of the entire system. And

          4  by the entire system, I am talking about over 500

          5  individual physical sites that have been assessed

          6  through that process.

          7                 Intro. 626 remedy to the attrition

          8  problem amongst DEP officers is to require that we

          9  identify steps we are taking to provide compensation

         10  comparable to other officers in the watershed.

         11  However, the remedy encroaches upon the collective

         12  bargaining process and managerial rights contained

         13  in the New York City Collective Bargaining Law that

         14  provide management with a right to determine the

         15  methods, the means, and the personnel to run its

         16  operations.

         17                 So again, good intent, we appreciate

         18  the support, we think there is a better way to go

         19  about it through our using our normal executive

         20  discretion and continued to work these issues.  And

         21  I will say, our attrition rates are down

         22  significantly, they are in the 9 percent range,

         23  still not good enough, but we are going to keep

         24  working at the salary issue, clearly committed to

         25  making improvements there.  And I think anyone who
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          2  comes and tours the watershed will be very impressed

          3  with what they find in terms of the Police profile

          4  and the morale issues.

          5                 And then the final general area,

          6  having to do with reporting requirements.  Intro.

          7  626 requires the agency, the DEP, to submit to the

          8  Council by September 14th, 2006 the draft, Long Term

          9  Watershed Protection Plan for the Catskill\Delaware

         10  System. Now pursuant to our current FAD, the final

         11  plan must be submitted to EPA by December 14th,

         12  2006.  At that point, EPA will conduct a final

         13  review and hold public hearings on the adequacy of

         14  the plan as a basis for a continuation of the City's

         15  filtration avoidance determination.

         16                 The legislation proposed here

         17  authorizes the Council to comment on the long- term

         18  plan by October 28th, 2006. If the Council then

         19  recommends revisions or modifications to the plan,

         20  the City must, prior to the final December

         21  submission to EPA, either adopt those provisions or

         22  explain why it has declined to do so.  Practically

         23  speaking, using September and October 2006 as

         24  milestones for review of the long- term plans puts

         25  the City in a position of negotiating against
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          2  itself.  At the same time, it is trying to conclude

          3  negotiations with the federal regulator for the most

          4  cost- effective, Watershed Protection Plan that

          5  complies with the requirements of the Surface Water

          6  Treatment Rule.

          7                 In addition, the mandated review

          8  process contained in Intro. 626 is contrary to local

          9  law, and it threatens to make the City's burden in

         10  crafting and negotiating a new FAD, even more

         11  difficult than it already is.  The City Charter vest

         12  overall authority for the operation and management

         13  of the City's water supply system in the

         14  Commissioner of DEP.  By requiring the DEP either

         15  agree with the Council's recommendations for changes

         16  to the agency's long- term plan, or explain why it

         17  does not, Intro. 626 calls into question who speaks

         18  for the City during negotiations with EPA.  That

         19  legislation, therefore, would undermine the

         20  authority and credibility of the appointed official

         21  charged by law with the duty of representing the

         22  City's interest in these negotiations.

         23                 Finally, Intro. 626 would not change

         24  the fact that the Council possesses and exercises

         25  oversight and budgetary authority over DEP's
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          2  Watershed Protection Program as it does over all our

          3  programs.  To date, it is DEP's view that the

          4  Council has exercised this authority in a very

          5  thorough and responsible way without jeopardizing

          6  the City's ability to carry on what is a highly

          7  regulated, and contentious Watershed Protection

          8  Program.

          9                 That is the end of my comments, and I

         10  thank you. And we would be happy to answer any

         11  questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you, Commissioner.  Let me just, oh, we are

         14  joined by Council Member Vallone from Queens;

         15  Council Member DeBlasio from Brooklyn, and we thank

         16  them for being here.

         17                 Let me just, I have a couple of

         18  questions here. With regard to the, sort of your

         19  overall view that the MOA is working well, and if it

         20  isn't broken, we shouldn't fix it.  Of course we all

         21  understand that the goals set out, or the mandates

         22  set out for year- by- year solicitation, there are

         23  no further goals beyond year '10, which kind of begs

         24  the question of what happens after that.  So as much

         25  as we all admire the MOA, I think we all understand
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          2  that the targets in the MOA run out.  And we saw

          3  this as a way to kind of lay the ground work for the

          4  future.  And while we can take issue with the

          5  precise wording, I think we all understand that

          6  there is clearly a need to, you know, continue our

          7  good efforts to purchase land, to do all the other

          8  good things that we are doing up there.

          9                 And is it the case that the, is it

         10  merely the issue that we are talking about, the

         11  acquisition targets like versus solicitation that it

         12  is sort of like having the biggest ripple also, like

         13  the biggest impact, would that be fair to say?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         15  All three aspects of this Intro. Causes concern.

         16  But in terms--

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let's talk

         18  about the Land Act.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  In

         20  terms of the Land Acquisition, it is the how we go

         21  about what we are all about here, which is

         22  protecting the watershed, ultimately avoiding having

         23  to build a very costly filtration plant.  The result

         24  of which would also be almost automatically, some

         25  less focus on preservation of what is one of the
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          2  country's great resources, --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY: - -

          5    the Catskill.

          6                 I think it is fair to say that our

          7  agency is as committed to the goal- -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY: - -

         10    that you have outlined, as anybody.  But again, it

         11  comes down to how we go about the process.  We are

         12  now laying the ground work for negotiation around

         13  another FAD.  And that involves, as does any complex

         14  negotiation, getting around the table, beginning to

         15  sort through priorities, and having the flexibility

         16  to listen to the other parties at the table, and

         17  begin to fashion an approach that will meet what are

         18  conflicting goals in the watershed.

         19                 If you impose outside of that

         20  Executive Discretion, the goal, a target, call it

         21  what you want, you have unnecessarily complicated

         22  the Commissioner's job, and the value of that, we

         23  question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  For the benefit

         25  of some of the members of the Committee who haven't
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          2  had the opportunity, as I have had, to work on these

          3  issues for the last 15 years now, just briefly

          4  explain, you know, kind of like the paradigm that we

          5  are working under now, that we forged this, you

          6  know, watershed agreement, and so there is the

          7  watershed agreement, and there is the, you know,

          8  Filtration Avoidance Determination, and as we go

          9  into the future we are going to have like a

         10  successor MOA, and a successor FAD.  Just like kind

         11  of lay that out in sort of like where we are now,

         12  and, you know, what the process is as you see it

         13  going forward when - -

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  If

         15  you let me, I am going to swear in a couple of my

         16  colleagues, Mark Hoffer, the Counsel, as well as Ira

         17  Stern, who is here and really manages this aspect of

         18  the program.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  If

         21  we swear them in  at once, I want to - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY: - -

         24    save some time, and they will be able to address

         25  these questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Donna, do you

          3  want to do a brief, like a omnibus, seems like an

          4  omnibus swear in.   Swear in the whole audience

          5  here, just so we are ready no matter what, you know.

          6    Donna.

          7                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

          8  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

          9  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         10  the truth?

         11                 ALL:  I do.

         12                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  So

         14  to this question, Mr. Hoffer.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         17  Who was here to negotiate the earlier one, and will

         18  have some perspective of where we are heading.

         19                 MR. HOFFER:  In very, very general

         20  terms, and we will obviously provide as much detail

         21  as you want, Mr. Chairman, we start sitting down

         22  with EPA, who we talk to on a regular basis, about a

         23  year to a year and a half before the current FAD

         24  expires.  And we begin to discuss what the building

         25  blocks would be of the new FAD.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The FAD being

          3  the Filtration Avoidance Determination.

          4                 MR. HOFFER:  The Filtration Avoidance

          5  Determination, and this discussion would center on

          6  an assessment on how water quality is doing, how

          7  cost- effective our existing programs have been,

          8  have there been any new threats or dangers to the

          9  water supply, is there anything on the horizon that

         10  EPA is particularly concerned about, or the State of

         11  New York is particularly concerned about, and we

         12  will begin slowly, and admittedly somewhat

         13  methodically to slog through the details of what the

         14  components of a new FAD would be.

         15                 We would ultimately produce and

         16  deliver to the EPA, and this is called for by the

         17  current FAD, a long- term plan for protection of the

         18  watershed, which would lay out essentially what we

         19  would commit to do, going forward, over the ensuing

         20  X number of years, which could entail continuation

         21  of existing programs, and there were several

         22  examples of that, the last time around that you may

         23  recall.  We put in, for example, additional money to

         24  remediate septic systems in the watershed, a

         25  continuation of what has been by all accounts a very
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          2  successful program.

          3                 We will also discuss and suggest

          4  modifications of where we feel the City's money

          5  could be better spent perhaps, better targeted

          6  towards specific threats to the water supply. And

          7  eventually we will have this plan crafted that we

          8  will deliver to EPA as you note in this

          9  introduction.  And there will be ongoing discussions

         10  with EPA even after that plan is submitted, because

         11  EPA may continue to analyze, see shortcomings, see

         12  other areas that they want covered, and ultimately,

         13  through a collaborative process that will involve in

         14  the first instance, discussions with our primary

         15  regulators, EPA and the State of New York.  And then

         16  additionally, discussion with our watershed partners

         17  both east and west of the Hudson, a product which

         18  will constitute a new FAD.

         19                 It will be based, in large part, on

         20  the City's plan, because that plan in and of itself

         21  will be the product of discussions with our

         22  regulators.  But it will have some modifications and

         23  additional wrinkles on top of that, that the

         24  regulators would like to see.

         25                 Ira, do you want to jump in and add
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          2  to that?

          3                 MR. STERN:  Well, I guess the one

          4  thing that I would like to - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have got to

          6  speak right into the mic.

          7                 MR. STERN:  Okay, sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And you should

          9  state your name for the record.

         10                 MR. STERN:  My name is Ira Stern, I

         11  am a Director of the Division of Watershed Lands and

         12  Community Planning for the Bureau of Water Supply in

         13  DEP.  And my job is to oversee the voluntary

         14  watershed programs, many of which were just listed,

         15  including Land Acquisition and the Management of

         16  that land.

         17                 Having participated in the Watershed

         18  negotiations, I think it is important for the

         19  Committee to understand that until we were able to

         20  deal with the fact that the City Reservoir's were

         21  created by condemnation at various points in

         22  history, that the watershed communities were very,

         23  very concerned that condemnation was going to be a

         24  part of this program.  And it wasn't really until we

         25  were able to move from acreage targets to
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          2  solicitation as a measure of the City's effort to

          3  purchase land that we were able to get the ball

          4  rolling towards an agreement. That was very

          5  important.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And if I can

          7  just jump in there for a second,- -

          8                 MR. STERN:  Go ahead.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: --  before I

         10  lose my train of thought.  The existence of hard,

         11  acquisition targets was equated in the minds of the

         12  Upstate people as sort of the eminent domain, kind

         13  of boogie man, so- to- speak.

         14                 MR. STERN:  Well there was the

         15  possibility because if you didn't meet your goal

         16  than the City, it was feared would use condemnation

         17  to reach that goal.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What if it was

         19  agreed that condemnation and eminent domain were not

         20  part of the picture, notwithstanding hard,

         21  acquisition targets?

         22                 MR. STERN:  Well the point - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Presuming that

         24  was put on the table.

         25                 MR. STERN:  Well the point I am
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          2  trying to make is that we have reached an agreement

          3  with the watershed communities under one framework,

          4  which is willing seller/willing buyer, no goals, no

          5  fear then for them.  And now we are going to, we are

          6  discussing, maybe even changing that.  The willing

          7  seller/willing buyer program is based on a certain

          8  level of trust that the transaction is fair and not

          9  required in any way.

         10                 We have had a tremendous amount of

         11  success, as you can see from our track record, in

         12  tripling our land holdings by using that willing

         13  seller/willing buyer program.  It would be difficult

         14  for us to consider a change in that agreement, so-

         15  to speak, the general framework of that agreement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, and we

         17  are not really talking about, from our point of

         18  view, not changing, you know, the willing

         19  seller/willing buyer methodology that we are

         20  operating under now.  But it would be, again, I

         21  don't want to put words in your mouth, but it would

         22  be your testimony or your belief that acquisition

         23  targets as soft as these are, would be, you know,

         24  tantamount to opening the door towards eminent

         25  domain, and sort of the end, or the possibility that
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          2  some transactions would not be willing buyer, like

          3  willing seller.

          4                 It is just that that leap, and I know

          5  we are going to be hearing from people from Upstate.

          6    I am just trying to make that logical.

          7                 MR. STERN:  I mean it is not my job

          8  to speak for the watershed communities themselves.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         10                 MR. STERN:  But as someone who deals

         11  daily with town supervisors and even individual

         12  landowners and property owners, and since the

         13  reservoirs were created by condemnation and our

         14  relationship over the last 100 years is tenuous in

         15  improving, and has proven to be very effective, I

         16  would be concerned that we would undermine the level

         17  of trust that we have built up to date by having

         18  these targets, whether they are soft or otherwise.

         19                 And I think the other thing I would

         20  like to add is that we have, as a result of the way

         21  the program has been set up, we have had real

         22  emphasis on quality, the quality of the lands that

         23  we bought.  And I would hate for us now to be driven

         24  more by quantity.  We have tripled our land

         25  holdings, as I have said, and every property we have
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          2  bought is of high quality, which means that it is

          3  important for protecting the water supply.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I guess

          5  kind of like the disconnect that we have is that we

          6  are not talking about a hard solicitation target, it

          7  is a goal.

          8                 MR. STERN:  Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And it is the

         10  issue of the good faith efforts to meet that goal,

         11  that we have the proper staff, that we have the

         12  proper outreach, that we are doing all, that we got

         13  money in the budget, that we have everything that we

         14  need in order to do that.  So, we, you know,

         15  intentionally crafted the bill in such a way as to,

         16  you know, clearly make a statement that we believe,

         17  as everyone believes it is critical to continue to

         18  acquire land, but to do it in such a way so it is

         19  not raise the specter of your eminent domain or

         20  anything that would cause anyone to be unsettled.

         21                 And as I said, we will hear from the

         22  Upstate communities later.  I just want to have a

         23  full understanding.

         24                 MR. STERN:  Just --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me give you
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          2  a softball here.  How about, talk about the role of

          3  sort of Upstate, Downstate, you know, mutual trust

          4  in terms of building sort of the, you know, the best

          5  kind of overall watershed protection program that we

          6  all need, just talk about that for a second.

          7                 MR. STERN:  Okay, well - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Can't do better

          9  than that, can't have a better question than that.

         10                 MR. STERN:  Well I am very proud of

         11  all of the work we have done in partnership with the

         12  watershed communities. We have achieved a tremendous

         13  amount, and that has really been based on the City's

         14  belief in local stewardships.  So most of these

         15  programs are run and implemented by local people,

         16  local communities, and the results really speak for

         17  themselves.

         18                 We have had a tremendous increase in

         19  the knowledge and the interest and the motivation, I

         20  feel, on the part of communities.  And it is a slow

         21  process and it is a trust building process.  And

         22  that is, to me, the biggest investment that the City

         23  has made is in its relationships and in trusting

         24  both ways the ability of organizations and

         25  communities to take part in protecting the water
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          2  supply.  And again, all the numbers that we have

          3  read off are a result of that partnership.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          5                 MR. STERN:  Thank you.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

          7  Can I say one thing on that?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I

         10  think, as you will be hearing, I'm sure this

         11  afternoon, all is not perfect and harmonious in our

         12  relationships with all of our watershed partners.

         13  There are very difficult issues, and there are

         14  ongoing issues, whether the recreation regulations

         15  that we need to propagate, or people that want to

         16  hunt any kind of animal on all of our lands, and we

         17  have a different point of view.  And it is never

         18  going to be perfect, there are conflicting desires

         19  and priorities.  There are tensions that are

         20  inherent in this relationship.

         21                 It is our commitment, I can speak for

         22  the Commissioner, to do what we can to make those

         23  relationships as sound and positive as we can while

         24  protecting the interest of the City in this all

         25  important mission of protecting the watershed.
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          2                 It is our view that this legislation

          3  will hurt our ability to do that, these acquisition

          4  goals.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me just

          6  turn it to a quick process question, which you are

          7  in the midst of laying out for me before I jumped in

          8  with that question.  So it would be envisioned that

          9  a year and a half out before the end of the FAD,

         10  before the of the MOU targets you would engage in a

         11  serious dialogue with the EPA, and from which a

         12  successor FAD would be born, so- to- speak.   And

         13  then would that successor FAD be tantamount to like

         14  a new MOA?  Because now we have like the MOA and we

         15  have the FAD, and going forward would we have that

         16  same structure, or how does that work?

         17                 MR. HOFFER:  Well, the MOA doesn't

         18  carry a term as such.  It lays out various - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, but it has

         20  targets, it has got whatever.

         21                 MR. HOFFER:  It's got targets, and it

         22  certainly lays out programs on various levels of

         23  financial commitment, some of which may have been

         24  met at this point or are close to being met, but it

         25  is not a document that in and of itself has an end.
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          2  And it provides, in many respects, an overall

          3  framework for a lot of what we do that would

          4  continue from one FAD to the next.  I don't think

          5  there is any contemplation or intention at this

          6  point that the MOA would somehow be reinvented or

          7  renegotiated.  But there certainly is a

          8  contemplation and an intention to engage in the

          9  early dialogue, which you just described with the

         10  EPA to agree on the terms of the new FAD, because

         11  FAD's do have terms, they do have limited life.  It

         12  is because EPA wants to take stock of the success of

         13  our efforts and the state of the water supply

         14  periodically because things change, as we all know.

         15                 The MOA itself was such a complex and

         16  difficult document to give birth to, and I think is

         17  grounded on a number of sort of basic principles

         18  that everyone bought into, and that provides sort of

         19  a philosophy behind everything that we do, that we

         20  would be very reluctant to tamper with it or try and

         21  change it.

         22                 A key principle of which is what Ira

         23  just annunciated, which is that in terms of land

         24  acquisition, we proceed on a willing seller, willing

         25  buyer basis without the specter of condemnation or
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          2  involuntary acquisition being on the radar screen.

          3  And I am the first one to admit, Mr. Chairman, that

          4  the language in the bill is what you described, it

          5  is expressed as a goal, not as a hard target.  But

          6  one must remember on an issue as complex as this, as

          7  a perception, counts just as much, if not more than

          8  reality.  And when we were negotiating the MOA in

          9  1995, 1996, there was a very, very strong view

         10  expressed that numerical targets or goals in terms

         11  of acquiring land, no matter what label you put on

         12  it, created the fear that if the City, for whatever

         13  reason was falling short, the City could or would be

         14  forced to rely on eminent domain, and that was a

         15  principle roadblock to get over in terms of getting

         16  the MOA launched at all.

         17                 This is history you are dealing with.

         18    For that reason we feel very, very strongly that

         19  even though the intent here is for the best, and we

         20  appreciate the Council's support over the years, and

         21  it has been strong support for things that we do to

         22  try to protect the City's water.  We basically feel

         23  that this sends a wrong single that calls into

         24  question the credibility of the agency, and it

         25  complicates the very, very difficult task of

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  negotiating out a document that literally took years

          3  to negotiate, and that was the MOA.  The FAD, the

          4  last time around took close to 18 months.

          5                 We think there are other ways, as you

          6  have alluded to, that we can work collaboratively

          7  with the Council, get the Council's input, get the

          8  Council's thinking, and incorporate that thinking

          9  into our planning for a new FAD, without this kind

         10  of, and I know you mentioned it is not a mandate,

         11  but it will be perceived as such, and that is very,

         12  very important.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         14  Ira, do you want to comment on that?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I actually

         16  wanted to, then let's talk about sort of like the

         17  world to come in the next go around, you know, we

         18  are going to be re- upping the FAD.  I mean is there

         19  any chance in anyone's mind that the next FAD would

         20  not include an element of land acquisition, is that

         21  even a possibility?

         22                 MR. HOFFER:  I will not purport to

         23  speak for EPA, and I don't know if the schedule to

         24  testify today, Mr. Chairman, but my own personal

         25  guess would be that they would want some component
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          2  of land acquisition continuing on in the next FAD.

          3  And indeed, it is the agency's contemplation that

          4  our land acquisition permit, which as you recall

          5  carries a 10- year term --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          7                 MR. HOFFER: - -  expiring in 2007,

          8  but with a five- year renewal option exercisable by

          9  the City, - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         11                 MR. HOFFER: - -  we would, in fact,

         12  exercise that option and seek to continue purchasing

         13  land Upstate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So there is

         15  clearly a vision, I just want to put that on the

         16  record, to continue to acquire land.  So then the

         17  question becomes, if it is necessary to continue to

         18  acquire land, there has to be some way to sort of

         19  set that out.  And it has been up till now been set

         20  out in this yearly solicitation targets, and then we

         21  would seek to set it out.  Set it out in annual sort

         22  of, you know, acquisition targets.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  We

         24  would leave it as follows:

         25                 It is absolutely DEP's thinking that
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          2  a significant land program would be part of any

          3  extension that we would be looking for in terms of

          4  the MOA and FAD.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sir, could you

          6  just repeat that?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  A

          8  significant land program would be a component, I

          9  think our thinking is of a reasonable extension of

         10  this program, which we are certainly looking towards

         11  for all the good reasons we have already recounted.

         12  But that program will come out of the negotiation,

         13  as Mark was describing earlier, that involves many

         14  components of the program, looking at what has been

         15  successful, looking at what has already been

         16  completed, looking at new things we can achieve in

         17  the watershed.  And out of that will become a

         18  component, which will be a land program.

         19                 We will then look at that, and we

         20  will bring the budget forward consistent with that,

         21  and it will be part of the normal budgeting process,

         22  Capital budgeting process that we go through in any

         23  given year, or out- year program.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         25  Yes, we just, we are trying to figure out a grade
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          2  for your performance, we couldn't agree on a grade,

          3  you know what I mean.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  No

          5  problem, no problem, we will take it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So we are not

          7  going to give you a score.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

          9  The firefighter is already one survivor, so I am not

         10   - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, you're

         12  right, yes, the firefighter is certainly getting all

         13  the glory.

         14                 And yes, I just wish to thank you,

         15  once again, for being here today, you know, working

         16  with us on this issue.  You know, clearly, you know

         17  what is clearly agreed is that we both have an

         18  abiding commitment to making sure that long after,

         19  when we are not in this job, and you are not in this

         20  job, you know, our children and our children's

         21  children will continue to drink the best water in

         22  the world.  It is just a question of how we do that

         23  in the very best way.  And maybe we will continue to

         24  have differences of opinion, but we all will

         25  continue to strived towards the same goal, and we
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          2  really appreciate your being here.

          3                 You know, we have had some

          4  discussions leading up to today's hearing, that is

          5  not going to change.  There are many other things,

          6  of course, that we are doing together, and thanks

          7  for today's, you know, 1.3 billion gallons, we

          8  appreciate that.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         10  Thank you, Chairman, we appreciate it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         12  much, Commissioner, thank you and your excellent

         13  staff for being here. And you know, we continue the

         14  ongoing partnership.  Thank you.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, and now we

         18  are happy to call Al Appleton from the Regional Plan

         19  Association, former DEP Commissioner under Mayor

         20  Dinkins, certainly has served with great distinction

         21  in that capacity.  It doesn't mean you can wreck the

         22  place, you know.

         23                 MR. APPLETON:  Are we collectively

         24  sworn, or do I have to be sworn in?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, you have
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          2  got to, we got to, we need like the whole dramatic

          3  effect of witness table, hand up, and the whole

          4  thing.  And so, Mr. Appleton, thank you for being

          5  here.  We appreciate your being here, you know,

          6  talking with you leading up to this hearing, and

          7  your great contributions, not only on this issue,

          8  but other issues before the Committee, mostly

          9  Jamaica Bay, and other things that we are kind of

         10  working on together.

         11                 And Donna will swear you in, then you

         12  can state your name for the record and proceed with

         13  your testimony.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         15  right hand. In the testimony that you are about to

         16  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         17  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MR. APPLETON:  I do.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I just

         21  want to make sure I have your statement.  Okay.

         22                 MR. APPLETON:  I am Robert F.

         23  Appleton.  I am currently a Senior Fellow at the

         24  Regional Plan Association, and a consultant both

         25  nationally and internationally on the Environment
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          2  Urban Development in Public Finance.  I am also the

          3  former Commissioner of the New York City Department

          4  of Environmental Protection between 1990 and 1993,

          5  when we initiated and put in place many of the

          6  initial elements of the City's Watershed Protection

          7  Program.

          8                 I am honored to be asked by the

          9  Council to appear and make comments on this

         10  legislation, and I hope that the comments I make

         11  will be helpful to the Council.

         12                 Before going to my prepared

         13  testimony, I would like to deal with two of the

         14  statements that were made in the preceding testimony

         15  by DEP, to which on the whole I was quite

         16  sympathetic to.  But nevertheless, I feel that the

         17  statement that if it isn't broke, don't fix it, is a

         18  phrase to the issue the wrong way.

         19                 If DEP is correct, and I believe they

         20  are, that it is working, and it isn't broke, then

         21  this legislation could be looked at as an

         22  opportunity to prevent someone from breaking it. And

         23  I think looked at from that perspective as a

         24  positive contribution to success, rather than as a

         25  kind of meddlesome interference, I think it is the

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  right perspective to take this legislation.

          3                 The one other thing I would like to

          4  deal with before starting is the comment made by

          5  Mark Hoffer about the issue of perception in the

          6  watershed.  And I think it is a very fair statement

          7  and a very true statement, but you can do two things

          8  with perceptions that are wrong.  You can feed them,

          9  or you can try and gently correct them.  And one of

         10  the perceptions I want to deal with is the issue of

         11  condemnation, very quickly, from my experience.

         12                 Condemnation, of course, is a very

         13  touchy word in the watershed because of the folk

         14  memories both real and sometimes exaggerated of the

         15  history of the City in acquiring the land in the

         16  original Watershed Protection Program.  But to my

         17  knowledge, not even I, who probably have the

         18  reputation as the biggest land acquisition haunt,

         19  ever proposed condemning any land in the watershed.

         20  In fact, the one time one of my staff let the word

         21  inadvertently slip, they were out of the watershed

         22  for the three months.

         23                 Moreover, it is very important to

         24  remind everybody, the City just cannot walk up and

         25  condemn land in the watershed.  There is a whole
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          2  permit process that the City would have to go

          3  through to condemn land, and in which the Governor

          4  would be involved, DEC would be involved, the local

          5  residents would be enormously involved.  In short,

          6  though I understand the sensitivity of the word, and

          7  I don't believe it should be thrown around casually,

          8  the suggestion that setting a target is going to

          9  lead the City to condemn things, and that is a real

         10  threat the residents in the watershed need to be

         11  worried about, is just not true.  And I think we

         12  should gently and straightforwardly not be

         13  intimidated by the raising of that perception, but

         14  try to correct it a bit factually.

         15                 Now let me go forward with the issue

         16  of this legislation.  The heart of this legislation

         17  as far as I am concerned is setting the target at

         18  7,500 acres per year for acquisition over the next

         19  10 years.  To put that in perspective, the current

         20  size of the watershed is 1.6 million acres.  So

         21  essentially this is talking about a target that even

         22  if it was met over 10 years, it would be less than

         23  one out of every 25 acres of the watershed.  So with

         24  this target, to me, clearly envisions, and why it

         25  should clearly be supported is it is looking to keep
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          2  the watershed acquisition program going on a

          3  strategic level, which I will discuss a little more

          4  as my testimony proceeds.

          5                 Now as I say in the beginning, I

          6  would not support this bill if I thought it was

          7  aimed at DEP.  I share your view, Mr. Chairman and

          8  members of the Committee, that DEP deserves a great

          9  deal of praise and credit for the way they have

         10  implemented this program over the first 10 years.

         11  And in fact, I believe that you are selecting the

         12  DEP's performance as a target ratio reflects that,

         13  and is another thing that should give the Department

         14  comfort as it considers this legislation.

         15                 But despite the Department's stellar

         16  performance, there are strong reasons why this

         17  legislation is important.  And it is important in

         18  the setting safeguards against breaking things.

         19                 The early history of the watershed

         20  illustrates this well.  We had actually hoped to

         21  start land acquisition as early as 1991 or 1992, and

         22  had we done then it would have been enormous benefit

         23  to the City.  In those years there was a steep

         24  recession.  The landowners were in great distress,

         25  not only were they anxious to sell to us, we would
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          2  have generated great good will by buying some of

          3  that land at fair market value.  Because they were

          4  otherwise, you know, subject to purchase officers

          5  only by people who were bottom fishing.

          6                 This was an enormous opportunity.

          7  The national consensus, unanimous, was that land

          8  acquisition should be a part of intelligent

          9  watershed protection program.  The Budget Bureau and

         10  other interest in the name of economy, in the name

         11  of City supervision, fought us every inch of the

         12  way.  I mean it was like the description of, you

         13  know, some historical descriptions I have had of how

         14  they fought for trenches inch- by- inch, and block-

         15  by block.  We went through an agony of frustration

         16  trying to persuade the Budget Bureau that this was

         17  the time, this was a good program, there were plenty

         18  of willing sellers and willing buyers.  Not only did

         19  we lose all the benefits that I have previously

         20  described, but it greatly made my task of

         21  persuading, what was then a very skeptical EPA, the

         22  watershed program would work much more difficult,

         23  because basically the belief was that New York

         24  wouldn't say anything, but when push came to shove,

         25  it would not spend the money.  And the resistance
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          2  that we were getting at this unanimous thing, this

          3  consensus element of watershed protection was an

          4  enormous, extra milestone around the City's neck as

          5  we toiled up to get those first two FADs in 1991 and

          6  1993.

          7                 And any hesitation on the City's part

          8  with respect to land acquisition, and I share DEP's

          9  concern about out partners in the watershed.  We

         10  must also remember that we have an audience out

         11  there in the United States, the Public Health Lobby,

         12  the Environmental Lobby, who understand how these

         13  things are done. And any faltering on land

         14  acquisition is going to be noted unfavorably.  Just

         15  as when the EPA to make its decision, these are our

         16  audiences.

         17                 Another reason for setting this goal,

         18  quite frankly, is it gives a benchmark against which

         19  the City can meander its own procedures.  As we all

         20  know, government is subject to kind of creepy

         21  process - it is.  That we get more and more layers

         22  of bureaucracy, more and more layers of procedure,

         23  more and more criteria.  Also as New Yorkers, we

         24  know the land acquisition is a rock them, sock them,

         25  highly flexible, highly nimble, business that we
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          2  have to pay a lot of attention to.  It will be an

          3  important benchmark for DEP to have, to be able to

          4  measure its own processes against a reasonably set

          5  target, and to measure the processes that are being

          6  imposed upon them.

          7                 This is particularly important, as

          8  they say, in the future in terms of making sure that

          9  the land acquisition program overtime stays nimble,

         10  stays goal oriented.  It does not get bogged down in

         11  process.

         12                 Finally, I would like to talk about

         13  it is the importance of this for the market, the

         14  land market in the watershed.  There are many people

         15  in the watershed who are income poor and land rich.

         16  The City being in the land market, and the City

         17  being committed to willing seller/willing buyer,

         18  paying fair market value, creates an important

         19  option for them in terms of when they have an

         20  ability to dispose of their property. Moreover, in

         21  this current time period, where land prices are

         22  going up, the combination of the speculative boom

         23  over gambling in the South Catskill, and kind of the

         24  surge of ex- urbanism that generally comes towards

         25  the end of an economic boom, it is very important
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          2  that the City show that it is not going to come in

          3  and just bottom fish.  That the City is willing to

          4  stay in the market, make the market, and if choice

          5  parcels are offered to it, that the City is willing

          6  to pay for them.

          7                 So it is setting a goal that is,

          8  functions, at least, partially on an annual basis.

          9  Even though I, quite frankly, have no fears that

         10  this Council would say, you made only 7,300 acres

         11  this year, doomed, destruction, despair, and

         12  condemned.  The truth of the matter is we want the

         13  City in the market as an ongoing and continuing

         14  presence.  And we don't want the City to just take

         15  the parcels that will be offered at low cost.

         16  Because it is the highest price parcels that are

         17  often the most valuable ones.

         18            So Eric Goldstein and others are going to

         19  talk about some of the more ecological and system

         20  reasons why land acquisition should continue.  That

         21  I just would like to make a couple of more comments

         22  about this.  Technically, I am on the side of, you

         23  know, substantively I think the Council's leadership

         24  is extremely important here and you should proceed

         25  with the bill. I do, however, have more sympathy
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          2  with DEP, or rather I have lots of sympathy with all

          3  of DEP's concerns, but on your goal setting I don't

          4  think they should take counsel on their fear so

          5  much. While I do think that they have more

          6  legitimate concerns that should be reflected in the

          7  redrafting of the bill in some of the technical

          8  provisions.

          9                 For example, I propose that the

         10  language allowing expanded recreational

         11  opportunities on these lands be stricken. DEP has

         12  done a good job of administering these kinds of

         13  issues, with phrase recreation has often been used

         14  as a can opener for inappropriately large scaled

         15  development and use of City lands. That this I think

         16  it is just better to be done on the case- by case

         17  basis.

         18                 Intro. 626 also has language that

         19  calls pushing the total percentage of protective

         20  lands closer to levels of public ownership and other

         21  unfiltered watersheds.  Since those levels are

         22  actually 75 to 80 percent, I don't think that is

         23  actually what the Council is proposing.  I think

         24  that the important point is that the City's Land

         25  Acquisition Program should be large enough, and I
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          2  think the current level of 7,500 acres a year target

          3  is large enough to be strategic.

          4                 What do I mean by being strategic?  I

          5  mean that it should be seeking knowledge by acres,

          6  but it should be seeking to buy the right acres.

          7  That is to maintain viable water protecting

          8  landscapes particularly in areas where development

          9  will have a disproportion impact on the City's water

         10  quality.  These areas include the West Branch,

         11  Boyd's Corner and Great Swamp Head Waters of the

         12  Croton.  They include the Ashokan Rondout and

         13  Neversink reservoir viewsheds.  They include the 28

         14  Route corridor, and particularly along the Asoapus

         15  (phonetic), and they include areas in the southern

         16  parts of the watershed that are now under

         17  speculative pressure from the hope of casino

         18  gambling. That, in short, the critical part of the

         19  Land Acquisition program, while I think the 7,500

         20  acres is a good balance between, is it needs to be

         21  strategic.  And of course, again, when I say it

         22  needs to be strategic, it means it has to be willing

         23  to pay the prices needed to be strategic.  That is,

         24  since we are committed to willing seller/willing

         25  buyer, we have to be committed to pay what the
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          2  market is asking for this property, and not

          3  attempting to low ball or use the appraisal process.

          4    We need to be in this market, we need to be

          5  bidding, we need to be strategic in these areas, and

          6  we will find willing sellers/willing buyers, if we

          7  are willing to be that.

          8                 Okay, now the critical thing that we

          9  have to remember about land acquisition, about

         10  partnership with the Catskill is that our goal is to

         11  make, provide economic opportunities for current

         12  residents that are consistent with, you know, and

         13  compatible with our watershed goals.  The MOA is

         14  ultimately an agreement in mutual self- interest.

         15  But what the MOA does not contemplate, and this is

         16  why I think we need to have a land acquisition

         17  program that is strategic, even if it means we have

         18  to pay much higher prices, is that MOA does not

         19  contemplate that the City, or for that matter the

         20  watershed, should be focusing on development that

         21  involves major, urbanization and suburbization of

         22  the watershed, or major urban developments of the

         23  watershed of the kind that Bel Air or some of the

         24  kinds of casino gambling would represent.  Casino

         25  gambling is a complicated issue.  The watershed
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          2  itself is bitterly divided over it.  But we cannot

          3  hide the fact that a program that hopes to pull 2.8

          4  million visitors a year into the Catskill just south

          5  of the watershed is going to have huge impacts on

          6  the watershed.

          7                 Now moving on, 626 does have the

          8  provisions about reporting, you know, that Mark

          9  Hoffer spent a great deal of time on.  I have to

         10  agree with Mark and DEP's criticisms of this matter,

         11  in this regard.  I think the provisions as written

         12  would in effect pit the Council against DEP almost

         13  from the beginning. Moreover, they would require

         14  submission to EPA, which would have the City

         15  speaking with two voices, which I think would be,

         16  you know, has infinite potential for mischief.  So I

         17  hope that the Council will, you know, exceed these

         18  requests, withdraw these provisions, and work on a

         19  better way to do information sharing.

         20                 With respect to the watershed police,

         21  you know, the watershed police have been through

         22  several rounds of renewal starting with the one we

         23  did in 1990 to 1993, and it is good to see that this

         24  Administration is once again, you know, this

         25  Administration is committed, I mean, once again, in

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  this Administration.  I mean there was an

          3  interregnum that followed that all was not

          4  necessarily well.  But I think in terms of the

          5  reporting, it would be a more balance reporting, if

          6  the reporting included not only the watershed

          7  police, but the watershed inspectors, because they

          8  are the two sides of the enforcement coin.  And that

          9  the police should not be singled out, and then I

         10  think the Council also does need to be, you know,

         11  sensitive to the issues of labor management

         12  relations and executive discretion that are raised

         13  with respect to some of the information the Council

         14  is requesting.

         15                 Lastly, I think probably the best way

         16  to do this, is to put this reporting into the

         17  ordinary institutional framework, which is just part

         18  of the budget, you know, the Executive Budget

         19  submission.  Because I don't think that there is any

         20  question that that is the kind of information that

         21  the Council can require, as part of an Executive

         22  Budget submission.

         23                 Lastly, I note the provision calling

         24  for set aside for buying land in Croton.  A set

         25  aside in funding is not necessarily something I
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          2  would necessarily support.  It is too inflexible and

          3  it gives kind of the wrong impression.  There is

          4  probably land that should be bought in Croton, but I

          5  have to say, quite frankly, that with the level of

          6  suburbization that has been reached in Croton

          7  investment in non- point source pollution controls

          8  and working with local land use authorities is

          9  probably going to be much more valuable in the

         10  future.

         11                 What is much more important in terms

         12  of acquisition than Croton is Kensico.  The City can

         13  never own too much land in the Kensico Watershed.  I

         14  know the land in Kensico Watershed is extremely

         15  expensive, I know it is not very fragmented.  I have

         16  an agony of frustration whenever I think about all

         17  the land we could have bought in Kensico, in the

         18  early nineties, which is another reason why I so

         19  strongly support this, you know, this goal.  But,

         20  you know, if you want to kind of select the

         21  watershed to target Kensico is, and why?  There is a

         22  very simple reason.  All the water we are protecting

         23  upstream passes through Kensico downstream.  It

         24  makes no sense to be spending enormous sums upstream

         25  to protect our water.  And then at the delivery
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          2  point to go slack, because we are worried about, you

          3  know, land prices that are admittedly quite high and

          4  quite steep.  But 50 years from now we will not

          5  remember that, what we will remember is that we have

          6  the land.  Kensico must be an absolute priority for

          7  acquisition going down the road in the future.

          8                 Land acquisition, in closing let me

          9  just say, land acquisition is a basic pillar of the

         10  City's watershed program, along with the whole farm

         11  program, the enforcement program of police and

         12  watershed inspectors, and the cooperative programs

         13  with towns.  It is a basic pillar of all watershed

         14  protection program worldwide, even those for

         15  filtered water system.  There may come a time a

         16  generation from now when we have acquired all the

         17  land that is strategic, and when we have enough

         18  confidence in our development control so we do not

         19  have to acquire any more, but I think that is, at

         20  least, a decade away.

         21                 I think for the moment the Council is

         22  making a very important commitment to the success of

         23  the watershed program, to push this program forward.

         24    And I hope with the changes I have recommended the

         25  Council will proceed with this legislation.

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Appleton, thank you for your comprehensive and

          5  largely supportive testimony, and places where you

          6  were not fully supportive you were very

          7  constructive.  And so, we do greatly appreciate

          8  that, as we always appreciate that, interacting with

          9  you, who, you know, as a one time Commissioner for

         10  the agency, has a perspective that very few can

         11  presume to have.

         12                 With regard to your good thoughts on

         13  sort of getting the right acres and being strategic,

         14  I have to confess that that was one of my thoughts

         15  to figure out a way to get the bill to do that, you

         16  know, better.  Because just 7,500 acres, you know,

         17  just to chase that mandate and to get that target

         18  acreage. You would hate to get acreage, in order to

         19  beat the 7,500 acres a year, to have the goal of

         20  doing that to forego some higher price, but very,

         21  very strategic acreage that we might need along 28

         22  corridor, or Kensico, or West Branch, or other

         23  areas.  I share your concern that there is a

         24  critical need to be very strategic, and any thought

         25  that you would have on how we can get this
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          2  legislation to sort of do that better would be

          3  greatly appreciated.  Do you have any further

          4  thoughts on that?

          5                 MR. APPLETON:  Well I think, you

          6  know, there is always has been a tension in the land

          7  acquisition program between people who wanted to

          8  count it by acres.  I mean this goes all back to all

          9  the time when I was Commissioner.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But, you know,

         11  people could make that argument, you know, against

         12  this bill, if they wanted to.

         13                 MR. APPLETON:  They could.  And

         14  between people that want to be strategic.  The

         15  problem of being strategic is, you can be strategic

         16  in a large sense, but you cannot be strategic in

         17  macro sense and really be in the real world and land

         18  markets.  You have to kind of look at this down the

         19  road, and see who is willing to sell and who is

         20  willing to buy at any particular time.  And

         21  establish the relationships with land owners so that

         22  when people are ready, they are ready.  But

         23  essentially, I think though that given DEP, and

         24  given hopefully the relationship this Committee is

         25  developing with them, DEP will take the goal not as
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          2  something to just kind of rush off and buy 900 acres

          3  in, you know, some obscure part of the Pepacton.  In

          4  which, frankly, I would think that the local people

          5  would be the ones who might blow the whistle asking

          6  why do you want land over here, for God sakes.  You

          7  know, people in the watershed are reasonably

          8  sophisticated about this.

          9                 So I think the important thing is

         10  that it creates a dynamic that you are looking

         11  forward to continue to use this program.  And then

         12  it creates a dynamic that will put a premium on good

         13  agency judgement and bad agency judgement, and that

         14  is probably the best you can do, frankly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is, you

         16  know, we certainly want to reward good agency

         17  judgement, and you know being very strategic while

         18  at the same time, you know, demonstrating an overall

         19  commitment that we do have to buy more land in the

         20  face of development pressures, which are going on

         21  Upstate.

         22                 MR. APPLETON:  Let me, Mr. Chairman,

         23  just one other thing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         25                 MR. APPLETON:  In talking about the
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          2  people who always want to hold back land

          3  acquisition, I want to make it clear that the forces

          4  in New York City, New York State government to do

          5  this are by no means unique.  You know, I have now

          6  consulted on watersheds in the fair part of this

          7  country and in British Columbia, and I can ensure

          8  that there Budget Bureaus do seem to go to the same

          9  school when they study this issue.  And it always a

         10  big issue in terms of watershed protection, but it

         11  really is one of the most important one.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With regard to,

         13  you know, DEP's testimony about us, you know, using

         14  the word, you know, acquisition versus solicitation,

         15  I think you have already talked a little bit about

         16  it in your testimony, about how they, you know, that

         17  in the minds of the Upstate community will sort of

         18  make the leap towards condemnation.

         19                 MR. APPLETON:  Well I don't think the

         20  minds of all the Upstate Community will do that,

         21  frankly.  Condemnation is a very touchy issue, even

         22  people understanding have to be careful about it

         23  with respect to the neighbors.

         24                 But let's keep in mind that the

         25  purpose of solicitation is acquisition.  You know, I
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          2  think everyone knows that the City does this program

          3  for the purpose of making strategic land purchases

          4  as part of its watershed program.

          5                 Things like the MOA must always be

          6  interpreted with a mutual understanding of both

          7  sides objectives.  That is, the MOA is based on a

          8  mutual perception and mutual self- interest. But

          9  part, our self- interest is in clean water, and one

         10  of the pillars of clean water is in land

         11  acquisition.  That is why we go through this

         12  process, because it is the best way to make what we

         13  need compatible with what, you know, with the

         14  comfort level of the watershed community.  But the

         15  purpose is not solicitation for its own sake, but

         16  the purpose is acquisition.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I just want to

         18  follow- up one last question regarding one of your

         19  opening comments in which you talked about DEP, and

         20  when they said, if it is not broken, don't fix it.

         21  And this bill would kind of be a hedge against

         22  making sure that someone doesn't, you know, break it

         23  in the future. Let's talk a little bit about how

         24  this thing could break, how could that happen?

         25                 MR. APPLETON:  Well as they say there

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  is always financial pressures, and those pressures

          3  are particularly now when you are going into the

          4  market.  The development community in the Catskill

          5  are not particularly anxious to have the City by

          6  land, less because they fear the City as a land

          7  owner, and they fear the City as a competing land

          8  bidder.  There are political forces that often come

          9  around, you know, particular institutional issues.

         10  They may not be able to beat the City on that issue,

         11  they may look for an issue that is emotionally

         12  charged, like land acquisition.

         13                 It's things come out of the blue.  I

         14  mean what I remember, most of the elements of the

         15  watershed program, you know, were known even if they

         16  had to be worked out.  And you know, the farm

         17  program came first out of the program.  Most of

         18  programs in the watershed program were known, and

         19  details had to be worked out.

         20                 Land acquisition was fought tooth and

         21  nail, it was fought by people like EPA who wanted to

         22  have more.  I mean now everyone thinks this is the

         23  world's best idea since sliced bread. But you know,

         24  the first half of nineties, and I can Eric kind of

         25  nodding his head sagely and knowingly of a much
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          2  different time for all of these programs.  And you

          3  know things come out of left field when you least

          4  expect them.  There is a growing concern about the

          5  water rates, the real action in the water rates is

          6  what we discussed in the last hearings and the Clean

          7  Water Program, and things like a watershed plan for

          8  Jamaica Bay, you know.  But it is very easy for

          9  people who are opposed to things like land

         10  acquisition to say, well this is driving up the

         11  water rates, and you know, look at all of this

         12  underdeveloped land, and why do we need 5,000 acres.

         13

         14                 The real problem with the land

         15  acquisition program, and defending it politically,

         16  is not that it is so big, but it is basically,

         17  relatively small.  Relatively small programs that

         18  are strategic are always, you know, when people

         19  don't like them or uncomfortable with them, are

         20  always difficult to defend.

         21                 The other thing, just speaking as a

         22  Commissioner, government doesn't like things like

         23  land acquisition.  There is a good reason it doesn't

         24  like it, because if you are not careful, it can be

         25  subject to corruption.  But the bad reason it
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          2  doesn't like it is that oversight agencies cannot

          3  supervise land acquisition very well, because it

          4  depends on a lot of entrepreneurship, creativity,

          5  sense of opportunities, working with local people,

          6  understanding their needs, none of these things can

          7  be reduced to the formulas of budget bureaus and

          8  operation bureaus and counsel office, as in

          9  personnel and civil service units like.  And you

         10  know, we have all been through these areas in

         11  government.

         12                 It is very important for the City to

         13  have a statement that however we are going to play

         14  this out, this is where we want, at the end of the

         15  day, you can't keep us from going here.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Appleton, we really appreciate the ability to work

         18  with you so closely, and your insights are most

         19  invaluable to us, and we thank you and RPA for

         20  making available to be here, not only today, but in

         21  the ongoing partnership we forged with you on so

         22  many fronts.

         23                 MR. APPLETON:  Well I appreciate,

         24  again, the opportunity to testify.  This is

         25  obviously a subject near and dear to my heart.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I know, mine

          3  too.

          4                 MR. APPLETON:  It is always fun to

          5  see how your child is doing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          7                 MR. APPLETON:  And I want to commend

          8  the Committee for the really, you know, splendid

          9  initiatives that is taking under your leadership.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Appleton, appreciate that.

         12                 The next witness, Mr. Jeff Baker, who

         13  will speak on behalf of the Coalition for Watershed

         14  Towns to be followed by a panel consisting of Eric

         15  Goldstein, Yigal Gelb of Audubon, Julie Mankiewicz,

         16  and I don't know, from Environmental Advocates, the

         17  representative of Environmental Advocates, I can't

         18  quite make out the name.  That will be part of the

         19  next panel.

         20                 And I am curious if there is a

         21  representative of Riverkeeper in the house.  Yes,

         22  okay.

         23                 Jeff, thank you for being here, I

         24  appreciate you making the trip down to be with us

         25  today.  We always appreciate your thoughtful
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          2  insights and great advocacy on behalf of the town.

          3  Donna will swear you in, and then you can proceed

          4  with your good testimony.

          5                 MR. BAKER:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          7  right hand. In the testimony you are about to give,

          8  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

          9  truth, and nothing but the truth?

         10                 MR. BAKER:  I do.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         12                 MR. BAKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13  For the record, my name is Jeffrey Baker.  I am

         14  Counsel to the Coalition of Watershed Towns, which

         15  is composed of approximately 50 towns and villages,

         16  which comprise the entirety of the Catskill/Delaware

         17  Watershed, West of the Hudson.  And we greatly--

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have a

         19  statement?

         20                 MR. BAKER:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have a

         22  written statement, okay, I got it.

         23                 MR. BAKER:  I will not read the

         24  statement.  I will summarize the main points and

         25  respond to some of the points that have been made
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          2  earlier by DEP and Mr. Appleton.

          3                 And I first want to thank you, again,

          4  for inviting us and soliciting our views on this.

          5  We appreciate your concern about our views on this

          6  issue, because this is a partnership and we are

          7  living with this too.  And some of my friends at DEP

          8  may fall off the chairs when I say it, but I have to

          9  say that I agree with most everything they were

         10  saying today.  And it is a rare occasion where we

         11  can say that, it doesn't mean that we agree on

         12  everything, or everything is going perfectly

         13  smoothly, as Deputy Commissioner Tweedy said.  But I

         14  think they have provided overall a fairly accurate

         15  presentation and I agree with their concerns about

         16  this bill.

         17                 Let me address some of those, first

         18  off, in the question of putting in the goals, and

         19  having a specific acreage target in there.  It is

         20  hard to over state the adverse impacts that would

         21  have on the watershed in terms of the perception.

         22  The reality of the concerns of eminent domain is

         23  real and it is current.  And I was, frankly, amused,

         24  shocked by Mr. Appleton's statement that he never

         25  used the word condemnation or eminent domain.
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          2  Because in 1993 his Administration in the first

          3  application to the New York State DEC for a water

          4  supply permit to buy land, specifically reserved the

          5  right to use eminent domain to require land.  And

          6  that little bomb that got dropped in the middle of

          7  other negotiations with the towns blew up the whole

          8  deal, and created a significant mistrust by the

          9  population.  The supervisors who had been reaching

         10  out with Mr. Appleton to develop a plan lost

         11  support, significant support because of that. And it

         12  did innumerable harm to the process.

         13                 So what we crafted instead was the

         14  program as it is drafted now, which provides a

         15  monetary commitment by the City meeting the

         16  obligations, the requirements of the EPA that there

         17  is a true obligation of the City that cannot be

         18  taken away, $250 million in a segregated fund.  And

         19  a process by which they solicit and commit then to

         20  go forward and complete the purchase of the land,

         21  upon a land owners consent, that they are interested

         22  in the price.

         23                 The number that is in the MOA of the

         24  solicitation of approximately 350,000 acres was not

         25  an accident.  That was arrived after consultation
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          2  with experts, including land conservation experts to

          3  say, well if you solicit a certain percentage of

          4  land, you are likely actually to close on X number,

          5  being the target, being we were trying to reach

          6  80,000, is what the City was looking for.  But it

          7  didn't put in a specific requirement for that

          8  because it always begs a question.  If you haven't

          9  hit your target, what happens next.  You have

         10  established a legal foundation with the EPA, and a

         11  FAD that you have not reached at something has to

         12  happen.  You know, even if everybody agrees it is

         13  not a big deal, and we will slide for it, and no one

         14  is going to be enforced, it creates that perception.

         15    And there is no way that the people in the

         16  watershed would support or agree to anything that

         17  even had the prospect of turning into eminent

         18  domain, and that is something to keep in mind.

         19                 I think from the coalition's point of

         20  view right now, we do not believe, and we think it

         21  is far premature to state that there has to be a

         22  further commitment by the City for further land

         23  acquisition.  The commitment by the City in this

         24  current round of 250 million, where it is already

         25  acquired over 60,000 acres, is far more than has
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          2  been acquired since the reservoirs were bought.  It

          3  was intended to be, with criteria that were

          4  established initially by the coalition, targeting

          5  the sensitive lands first by creating the priority

          6  areas, creating the natural features criteria so

          7  that it would not be a haphazard land acquisition

          8  program.

          9                 It is simplistic to say that, okay,

         10  we have met that first target, we have acquired what

         11  we wanted to, we spent the $250 million, it is time

         12  to throw another $250 million into it because more

         13  is better.  That is a simplistic analysis that is

         14  not supported by the science or the reality in the

         15  watershed.

         16                 The MOA and the parties recognize

         17  that what you have here, unlike any of the other

         18  places with the possible exception of Boston, if I

         19  am not mistaking, a living, populated watershed,

         20  with communities that have the right to continue,

         21  and continue, can prosper and develop responsibly

         22  with the regulatory program that is out there that

         23  protects water quality.  I mean the operative term

         24  is, you know, are we protecting water quality, is

         25  water quality endanger, and it is not.  Water
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          2  quality is improving, the infrastructure

          3  improvements that have been financed by the City at

          4  its own plants, at the private plants, and other

          5  activities are improving water quality, and it has

          6  not been shown that the development, a pace of its

          7  current rate with the controls in place, present any

          8  kind of a threat to water quality.  And it is

          9  presumptuous to say that we have to make a

         10  commitment now of an additional $250 million, at a

         11  minimum, it has to await for the completion of this

         12  program, and an evaluation of is there a deficiency,

         13  are there areas that still need to be acquired, or

         14  where are the regulations inadequate to protect

         15  those interest.  And it is the position of the

         16  coalition, at this point, that we have not reached

         17  that point because you have to remove, remain areas

         18  for responsible growth in these communities that

         19  cannot be hermetically sealed with the acquisition

         20  of all the available land.

         21                 I am not going to say, and it is

         22  certainly not the coalition's point right now that

         23  there cannot be any further extension of this

         24  program, or that we might not support one in the

         25  future.  But I can say categorically that if the
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          2  issue came to a point today, and the question was

          3  should this City's land acquisition permit be

          4  extended today, under the existing program, the

          5  coalition would take the position, no, it should not

          6  be extended.  And the reason they are taking the

          7  position that it cannot be extended, and we have

          8  articulated this point to DEP, is that New York City

          9  DEP has not lived up to its bargain in terms of the

         10  MOA, and specifically with the land acquisition

         11  program. And the specific deficiencies that arise go

         12  to the question of recreational use of the City's

         13  lands.  And again, I take exception with Mr.

         14  Appleton's testimony that we should not be allowing

         15  recreational use on those lands.  Clearly, they are

         16  contemplated, it is in everybody's interest to do

         17  it, and it is a critical element of the coalition's

         18  support for any kind of a land acquisition program,

         19  and it is a fairly simple reason.

         20                 We are a tourism- based economy up

         21  there.   The tourism is based on people being able

         22  to come up and enjoy the outdoors, and enjoy nature

         23  in a responsible manner, and in a non polluting

         24  manner that does not threaten the water quality, but

         25  allows it to be used.  And there had been a
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          2  historical problem with the City's earlier holdings

          3  that there have been restrictions on the level of

          4  their use.  You know, the City allowed row boats and

          5  fishing in some areas, but in other areas were

          6  overly restrictive and that was the view of the

          7  public.

          8                 In this case, DEP was not buying

          9  simply reservoirs, but buying large parcels far

         10  distance from the reservoirs for watershed

         11  protection.  In that case, if you were buying a

         12  parcel of say 200 acres, or a massing of the lands,

         13  or create a large parcel of land, we wanted to be

         14  sure that they open, so that people could hike,

         15  fish, hunt, and do the things that they are able to

         16  do on the State lands.  And again, that is an

         17  important thing to recognize, because many of the

         18  lands that you are acquiring are surrounded or

         19  adjacent to State holdings. So if the activity is

         20  allowed on State land, and that land may actually,

         21  the State land be downstream of your holding, why

         22  shouldn't it be allowed on your land also, if it is

         23  upstream? There has to be a presumption that the

         24  lands are available for everyone.  And we would

         25  submit that it is an important issue for your
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          2  constituents.  As residents, the citizens of New

          3  York City who pay for this land with their water

          4  rates, they should have a right to use it in a

          5  responsible manner.  These are the closest,

          6  significant open space areas to New York City.  The

          7  largest metropolitan area in the country, and should

          8  be available for them to use it in a responsible

          9  manner.  To seal them off from use is not only

         10  elitist (sic), but it removes the economic

         11  opportunity for the Catskill, and an important

         12  recreational opportunity for the people of New York

         13  City.

         14                 Unfortunately, was the lands that

         15  have been required by New York City, DEP is moving

         16  in our opinion, far too slowly to open those lands

         17  up for recreational use.  They have made progress,

         18  they have opened up many of the lands, but they have

         19  been restrictive in many regards in which they do

         20  it.  They have proposed the permit system which by

         21  its nature is designed to discourage use while not

         22  providing any meaningful regulatory benefit to New

         23  York City, and only results in increase cost and

         24  discourages that use.

         25                 The City has said, and Mr. Tweedy, I
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          2  believe it was, reiterated it today, that the City

          3  will not allow small game hunting on its lands.  The

          4  MOA was very specific, the City will allow hunting

          5  on its lands.  The MOA did not say that we would

          6  only allow deer hunting.  The State allows hunting

          7  on all of its lands.  Many hunters who come up there

          8  are New York City residents.  This is not a question

          9  of our personal beliefs on the benefits of hunting,

         10  or what that is.  But it is a statewide policy that

         11  we have managed hunting seasons.  And again, when

         12  you are remediately adjacent to the State land,

         13  there is no reason to discourage those uses.  And in

         14  fact, there are water quality benefits that have

         15  been attested to by studies that have been done of

         16  controlling the animals that are on the watershed,

         17  because those are the primary sources of many of

         18  your pathogens that are coming into the water

         19  supply.

         20                 Keep in mind, there are more white-

         21  tailed deer in the watershed, than there are people.

         22    So you know the relative threats that come from a

         23  water quality, the threats are not coming from

         24  hunting.  And to the extent that the City has put up

         25  obstacles to the full use of the recreational use of
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          2  those lands, puts the coalition at the point right

          3  now of saying we believe that you have lost, you do

          4  not deserve an extension of your permit rights to

          5  acquire land.  And it will be the coalition's point

          6  of view if this issue is not resolved when the

          7  permit is up for renewal in 2007.  That the permit

          8  addendum will have to be amended to address this

          9  issue before it is allowed to be continued.  This is

         10  an issue that has been peculating in the watershed

         11  for at least five years.

         12                 We are having ongoing discussions

         13  with New York City.  This Council should know that

         14  New York State, DEC and DOH with the, you know, who

         15  hold primacy responsibility over the Filtration

         16  Avoidance Determination the next go around, have

         17  supported the coalition's position on the question

         18  of the recreational uses.  And says that the

         19  regulatory program proposed by the City for a permit

         20  system and restrictions on hunting are not water

         21  quality based.  And they see no incapability of

         22  increasing the recreational use of these lands.

         23                 Those are some of the important

         24  issues that we are facing in that regard.

         25                 If I may, just as a side point to
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          2  make, and we are not taking a position, obviously,

          3  on your, the provisions of the bill dealing with DEP

          4  Police.  But I want to address that briefly, and it

          5  is in my statement.

          6                 The Court of Appeals recently

          7  affirmed the jurisdiction of the DEP Police in the

          8  watershed by a very close vote.  The coalition took

          9  the position and continues to take the position that

         10  we appreciate and respect the role of the DEP Police

         11  in the watershed, and certainly recognize the proper

         12  role they have to protect this important resource.

         13  However, as I am sure you can all appreciate with

         14  your various constituents, it is a very tense and

         15  dangerous situation where you have a police force in

         16  a community which is not accountable at all to local

         17  elected officials.  It is a prescription for abuse,

         18  and it is a prescription for tension,

         19  misunderstandings and problems.  There are

         20  continuing problems of lack of coordination between

         21  DEP Police and the local Police officials, town

         22  police, sheriff departments, and State Police.

         23                 We have made efforts in the past to

         24  try an bring all of those groups together so they

         25  understand what their respective jurisdictions are,
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          2  how they deal with first response on a variety of

          3  issues, unrelated, of course, to the reservoirs

          4  themselves, and how there can be a framework for

          5  dispute resolution and review of basically

          6  performance.  We haven't had much luck on that so

          7  far.  And I think if it is something this, it is in

          8  the interest of this Council, we would urge you to

          9  support, I don't know if requiring is a proper word,

         10  but you know, urging DEP Police to enter into a

         11  Memorandum of Agreement with the local Police

         12  jurisdictions to resolve these issues so that we can

         13  have the benefit of the police up there enjoy their

         14  mutual assistance on that, but also have a means to

         15  avoid controversies.  Because ultimately if mistakes

         16  start happening up there, the City is going to be

         17  financially liable on that regard.

         18                 If you aware, there was recently a

         19  shooting in the watershed by DEP Police on a

         20  particular instance.  My understanding of the facts

         21  is that nobody really questions DEP's actions on

         22  that.  It was an appropriate circumstance, but it

         23  wasn't even in the watershed.  They came outside the

         24  watershed and responded first, before other people

         25  got there, did not wait for other officials to get
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          2  there.  The specifics of that are not germane to

          3  this, but it exemplifies that problems can happen

          4  And I think it is important to avoid that, because I

          5  am sure that none of your constituents would like to

          6  have a police force that is not accountable to this

          7  Council, and that is the situation that many of the

          8  communities have there.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Baker.  And I was more than willing to give you fair

         12  amount of latitude in your comments that you know

         13  went through the scope of this legislation, because

         14  I think everything that you said was important for

         15  me and the staff, and this Committee to hear.   So

         16  as good witnesses, we will have to pretty much stick

         17  just to the legislation, but it gave a better

         18  insight than I previously had about what the mind-

         19  set of the Upstate communities is.

         20                 MR. BAKER:  I appreciate your

         21  indulgence.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  And just

         23  the, I was kind of scared at first, when you said,

         24  look we are not really signed off on the whole

         25  notion of going further in like the next go around
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          2  with any kind of land acquisition.  But then your

          3  comments were more along the lines of, and again I

          4  don't want to mischaracterize, but you need to get

          5  something better from DEP in turns of consideration

          6  for recreational uses for you folks to go along with

          7  continued land acquisition, you know, I can

          8  understand that.

          9                 MR. BAKER:  At a minimum that would

         10  be required. I cannot say definitively at this point

         11  the coalition has not fully addressed it, that even

         12  if that was considered, what our views would be on a

         13  future, additional 250 million devoted for land

         14  acquisition.  We have to look at the question of

         15  where is there really the need, because we need room

         16  for growth in our communities.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well let me

         18  just speak to that a little bit.  What scared me a

         19  little bit was that your belief was, the belief on

         20  behalf of the people that you represent that, you

         21  know, the science doesn't necessarily support the

         22  need for continuing, you know land acquisition.  And

         23  it seems that the high priority, you know,

         24  acquisition areas along, that have critical impact

         25  on water quality.  You know it would seem that there
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          2  is abundant, scientific evidence that you know

          3  additional purchases of at a bare minimum, you know

          4  very sensitive land in certain areas would be

          5  required by EPA for them to even think about, you

          6  know, giving us continued filtration avoidance.

          7                 Would you agree with that statement?

          8                 MR. BAKER:  I would generally agree

          9  with your statement.  I would defer to DEP, and my

         10  knowledge of their acquisitions already, I think

         11  most of those lands have been acquired.  When you

         12  look at the priority- 1, and priority 1- A

         13  properties, many areas have been acquired there in

         14  the first rounds.  Now if your future land

         15  acquisition program is going to be targeted to those

         16  areas and have more specific criteria that would be

         17  determined eligible properties, yes, I think that is

         18  a point for discussion, and that could be agree

         19  with.

         20                 Many of your areas now, or in your

         21  acquisitions are moving into the priority- 4 areas,

         22  which is basically anything in the watershed, far

         23  removed, where I think the water quality benefit

         24  provided by acquisition is nominal, at best.  You

         25  know, you cannot ignore the fact that you have in
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          2  place, administered by the City, the most thorough

          3  and comprehensive land use, water quality control,

          4  regulatory program out there, unequal.  So it is not

          5  like it is, you know, you are going to have unfetted

          6  development.  You have got far stricter regulations

          7  than you put in New York City.  So I think you have

          8  to take it into account.

          9                 But yes, I think if you were to focus

         10  your acquisition on some remaining parcels that are

         11  in the very high priority- 1, 1- A areas, there

         12  might be rooms for discussion, but I am not sure how

         13  much of that is left anyway, that isn't, you know

         14  taken up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  Mr.

         16  Baker, I just want to thank you for being here.  I

         17  think of posing up questions, I always benefit from

         18  doing it.  You know every time you are before me it

         19  is like a little bit of sort of an Upstate mind meld

         20  kind of thing going on.  So I appreciate the very

         21  important perspective that you bring.  And I am

         22  grateful for your presence here, and as I said, I

         23  was willing to give you broad latitude in your

         24  statement because you are sort of carrying the ball

         25  for, you know, all of the towns.  And please feel
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          2  free to reach out to me or members of my staff, or

          3  members of the Committee as appropriate.  And we

          4  have known each other for many other years, and we

          5  always have had good interactions, and I appreciate

          6  your being here today.

          7                 MR. BAKER:  Thank you, I appreciate

          8  it very much. And I will be available to your staff,

          9  if you ever have questions.  I think this

         10  Committee's oversight of the program is very

         11  worthwhile, and I, from a personal point of view, I

         12  think you know the issue of the Council wanting to

         13  have some review authority, the ability to review a

         14  watershed protection program is not a bad idea.

         15  Because I think it is important to get as many views

         16  as possible as those programs are going forward.

         17  And I appreciate this Committee's involvement in it.

         18    Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Baker.  Even though I had previously announced the

         21  next panel, I am going to use a little prerogative

         22  of the Chair to bring on you know the man, who not

         23  only do I have high regard as a public official and

         24  a former Council member, but a great friend and a

         25  great mentor to me.  And you know the man who handed
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          2  me this gavel, you know, when I became Chairman, and

          3  that is none other than my good friend and mentor,

          4  you know, Stan Michels.  So Stan, we want to hear

          5  from you, we want to hear from you.

          6                 I was, Stan in his tenure over this

          7  Committee for 10 years, you know, helped to instill

          8  in me, while I had a great love for the watershed,

          9  but I learned a lot about how to be a effective in

         10  this job by sitting next to you, Stan, and I try to

         11  do as you would have done.  And sometimes people ask

         12  me, well all the other Chairman they like gavel open

         13  the hearing and they gavel close the hearing, and I

         14  only gavel close the hearing, I don't gavel open the

         15  hearing.  And they say why don't you gavel open the

         16  hearing, I am like, because Stanley didn't do that.

         17  You know what I mean?  So, I just gavel it close.

         18                 But Stan thank you so much for being

         19  here.  Thank you for your outstanding commitment for

         20  the watershed, and so we are pleased and privileged

         21  to have you before us today.  And I also thank you

         22  for sort of starting the Upstate, Downstate

         23  relationship with the Council by that very

         24  productive meeting that you had back in 1993, when

         25  we got all the parties together in one room, at the
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          2  same time - -

          3                 MR. MICHELS:  You are stealing some

          4  of my statement.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, yes, so -

          6   -

          7                 MR. MICHELS:  Jim, thank you, you are

          8  being very kind.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, well that

         10  is the least I can do.

         11                 MR. MICHELS:  I really appreciate it.

         12    Good afternoon. - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please proceed.

         14                 MR. MICHELS:  Thank you for the

         15  welcome to being here, and to you, you are doing a

         16  good job in your Committee, and my best to your

         17  Committee.

         18                 For the record, my name is Stan

         19  Michels, Stanley Michels, and some of you may know,

         20  as was just mentioned, I am a former Council member

         21  and former Chair of this Committee.  I am here to

         22  testify in support of Intro. 626, the New York City

         23  Water Supply Protection Act.

         24                 Protection of New York City's water

         25  supply is perhaps, singularly, the most important
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          2  duty, not only of this Committee, the Council, but

          3  of the City and State of New York. It should be

          4  noted that our watershed also supplies water to

          5  Westchester County.  Therefore, the Committee and

          6  the Council has the vital obligation to be involved

          7  in all aspects of safeguarding our water supply.

          8                 When I was Chair of this Committee,

          9  we took this obligations very seriously, and I am

         10  pleased to see that you are carrying on that

         11  tradition, Jim.  The legislation that you are

         12  considering today is consistent with the past

         13  actions and oversights of the Environmental

         14  Protection Committee.

         15                 When the Federal Safe Drinking Water

         16  Act was passed, we realized we had to finally face

         17  up to the fact that much more had to be done to

         18  protect our endangered supply.  Also, not to do so

         19  would result, pursuant to law, in us having to spend

         20  upwards of $6 million to build, and hundreds of

         21  millions of dollars to maintain a water filtration

         22  plant.

         23                 The only way to avoid this

         24  devastating expenditure, and as a result increase in

         25  water fees, would be to obtain a waiver from the
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          2  Federal Environmental Protection Agency. Back in

          3  1993, the City received the first of several federal

          4  filtration avoidance waivers, and in 1997 the

          5  filtration avoidance determination was received from

          6  the EPA pursuant to the SDWA, which we now know as

          7  the Safe Drinking Water Act.

          8                 These names will get to me.

          9                 In 1993, faced with the possibility

         10  of a huge financial burden of having to build this

         11  filtration plan, I convened a meeting, which was

         12  just referred to, of this Committee in which

         13  approximately 40 governmental officials and

         14  interested parties in the Catskill/Delaware and

         15  Croton Watershed areas participated, an unusual

         16  setting.  All the parties sat around in a semi-

         17  circle, if you remember, with the Committee members

         18  sitting inside the circle as to permit the parties

         19  to have a dialogue with each other.

         20                 The reason for this was to try to

         21  ameliorate the many years of antagonism and

         22  resentment that built up since the turn of the

         23  century when our City, by use of eminent domain

         24  acquired that watershed area and built reservoirs

         25  flooding some ancestral homes and properties owned
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          2  by people in the watershed area.  That area extends

          3  some 125 miles north of the City.  It was a

          4  memorable meeting, in which we learned to be

          5  sensitive to the needs of others.  We came away, I

          6  hoped, with the understanding that we had to work

          7  for the common good of all the people of our state.

          8  I believe that that was the turning point that led

          9  directly to the watershed agreement and the 1997

         10  Filtration Avoidance Determination.

         11                 This Council has also representation

         12  on the Watershed Partnership Council, and for a

         13  period of time I was the member of that body.

         14  Therefore, no one should be heard to say that this

         15  Council has no business being involved in this

         16  issue. As important to the lives and the businesses

         17  of 10 million people, we have always been involved,

         18  and we should be involved. We have been involved

         19  from the beginning, and thank God, we are still

         20  being involved.

         21                 It is appropriate and necessary that

         22  the Council be involved in any revision of the

         23  Watershed Protection Plan, which must be submitted

         24  to the EPA by December 2006 for approval. So we will

         25  have a program replace the expiration date of the
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          2  2007 date.

          3                 The bill's goal of purchasing and

          4  securing easements up to 75,000 acres of watershed

          5  land over 10- year period is reasonable and

          6  obtainable, and consistent with past practices.  As

          7  in the past, it is merely a goal, and should be done

          8  using willing buyer/willing seller methods with

          9  consultation with the watershed towns and villages,

         10  and I emphasize the latter.

         11                 The legislation provides that it not

         12  be use of eminent domain, and we think we are

         13  continuing to do that, we should be doing it, it has

         14  been done, and we have been successful in doing it,

         15  not using eminent domain.

         16                 Further, the legislation does not

         17  require the Council's approval to the revised long-

         18  term watershed, wait a minute - -  No it was

         19  required under the legislation, I read that

         20  legislation very carefully, I don't know why people

         21  are saying that it requires the Council's approval.

         22  It only provides that the document be presented to

         23  the Council by September 2006, so that hearings may

         24  be held with respect to it.  The Council will then

         25  have the ability to evaluate it and make
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          2  recommendations.  Therefore, the DEP Commissioner

          3  may either incorporate such revisions, or

          4  modifications recommended by the Council, and

          5  explain why the recommendations were not

          6  incorporated, and also attach the Council's

          7  evaluation as an appending to such document.  It is

          8  not required to be approved though.

          9                 I am pleased that the legislation

         10  provides reports to the Council on acreage and

         11  easement acquisitions, and the methods they do so

         12  acquire.  Likewise, I am pleased that legislation

         13  will address the important issues related to the

         14  enforcement, to the enhancement of DEP Watershed

         15  Police.

         16                 The legislation should be enacted

         17  because there could never be an over abundance of

         18  oversight and transparency, and being sensitive to

         19  our water supply.  For there is nothing in this

         20  legislation interferes with the program's

         21  independence, since all parties have always shown

         22  that the issues here transcend politics.  And that

         23  the interested parties, including the City Council

         24  realize that any agreement between the City and the

         25  70 watershed towns and villages can only work under
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          2  its cooperation.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman I will call you, because you were Chairman

          6  of this Committee, so it is a title that you will

          7  carry on.

          8                 And I, you know, we will use the

          9  occasion of your statement to, you know, reaffirm

         10  that to all the representatives of the Upstate

         11  communities, that I will follow in your mold of

         12  being, of, you know, working with the Upstate

         13  communities with the utmost sensitivity, and you

         14  know, understanding.  You know that was the track

         15  that you took this Committee down by that first

         16  landmark meeting that you had that brought everyone

         17  together for the first time.

         18                 MR. MICHELS:  If you remember, that

         19  was a very antagonistic meeting, there were some

         20  people really fighting with each other.  They first

         21  learned to talk with each other.  The fact of the

         22  matter is that we cannot be successful without the

         23  cooperation and without talking to them, learning

         24  from them.  And we have always said when it came to

         25  certain areas of acquisition, we need their
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          2  approval, we want their approval, and we should get

          3  their approval.  And that has been followed, and

          4  that is why it is such a successful program.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What I remember

          6  most about that meeting was sort of like the

          7  attitudes about the people when they first sat down,

          8  and there was a lot of acrimony.  But you know

          9  towards the end of the meeting and with people

         10  milling around afterwards there was a much, much

         11  different feeling in the room.  And as you said, I

         12  think that was the kind of springboard to what was

         13  some ultimately, very, very  successful

         14  negotiations. And I think your statement here today,

         15  you know, affirms, better than I even said it

         16  myself, of my desire to continue in the path that

         17  you set us out on, and making sure that whatever we

         18  do here in this Committee is with cooperation of the

         19  Upstate community, but by always remembering that we

         20  have to do everything that we can.

         21                 MR. MICHELS:  And if they want to

         22  come down and talk to us, they want us to go up

         23  there.  I would even suggest that maybe we should

         24  have hearings up there so you can go and listen to

         25  what they have to say, and be up there and let the
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          2  towns, - -  anything we can do to make them feel

          3  like we really have their interests at heart, and we

          4  do.  Because it is important to this City, if we are

          5  succeeding to protect their water supply that they

          6  feel good about what we are doing up there  And if

          7  there is some antagonism, like I heard with the

          8  watershed police on the issue of hunting, we should

          9  try to bring people together and try to get that

         10  resolved.  There is no reason why it cannot be used

         11  for recreational purposes.  As long as it protects

         12  the water supply and it doesn't in any way cause a

         13  problem with the water supply.  They should enjoy,

         14  that is why we talked about easements, instead of

         15  just acquiring the land.  And they have to be

         16  sensitive to us because it is important, the City of

         17  New York is the engine that runs this State, and we

         18  should be sensitive to them, and they should be

         19  sensitive to us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You couldn't

         21  put it any better, and it is difficult to add

         22  anything to that.  So, Stan, with that said, I just

         23  thank you so much for being here.

         24                 MR. MICHELS:  I thank you for having

         25  this hearing.

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          3                 MR. MICHELS:  You were a great

          4  counsel to me, you were very important to me when I

          5  did, when you were working on my staff.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

          7  that.

          8                 MR. MICHELS:  I am very glad that you

          9  have this Committee because you are doing such a

         10  good job.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And thank you

         12  for continuing to take my phone calls when I have

         13  things that I have to talk over with you, and I need

         14  so much guidance, you are always there to provide

         15  that.  I am most grateful for that, Stan.

         16                 MR. MICHELS:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  thank you.  A round of applause for Stan.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Okay, and now we are going to call

         21  the panel that we previously called.  I would like

         22  to thank this panel for their gracious indulgence.

         23  You know, letting Stan come in and give us the

         24  benefit of his views.

         25                 And so we will have Eric Goldstein,
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          2  Yigal Gelb of New York City Audubon, Julie

          3  Mankiewicz of the GAIA Institute, the representative

          4  of Environmental Advocates, I can't quite make out

          5  the name, and Kim Elliman of the Open Space

          6  Institute.

          7                 Okay, what we will do is, okay, we

          8  will take the statement first from Eric, to be

          9  followed by Kim Elliman, who I understand has a time

         10  commitment.

         11                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you very much,

         12  Mr. Chairman. My name is Eric Goldstein.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, you know

         14  what we will do, we will just get everyone in place,

         15  and then we are going to, you know, Donna will do

         16  the oath.  We gave Stan a little bit of a pass on

         17  that.

         18                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         19  right hands? In the testimony that you are about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         22                 ALL:  I DO.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  Eric.  Yes, I just, I have known you as long as I

         25  have known, you know, Stan Michels, and I thank you
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          2  for all of the great work that we have done

          3  together, and you are a great assistant on getting

          4  this bill together.  I greatly appreciate that

          5  partnership.

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.  We appreciate the partnership, we

          8  appreciate your holding these hearings.  My name is

          9  Eric Goldstein with the Natural Resources Defense

         10  Council, and with me is Robin Marx, NRDC's Water

         11  Quality Specialist.

         12                 We have a detailed statement we would

         13  like entered on the record, and I will briefly

         14  summarize that today.  We will either have a world

         15  class, unfiltered drinking water supply 50 years

         16  from now with smart growth concentrated in the

         17  watershed towns and hamlets, and a significant

         18  portion of lands as protected forest and meadows, or

         19  we won't.

         20                 You, as a Council member are here for

         21  8 years, and one wonders whether there would be a

         22  better legacy to the time you served on the City

         23  Council then helping to ensure a safe and protected

         24  drinking water supply for generations yet to come.

         25  Whether the Catskill and Delaware, and Croton water
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          2  supplies will be protected for these future

          3  generations is still very much an open question.

          4                 Right now these three watersheds are

          5  facing huge challenges.  Topping the list of long-

          6  term threads is ill advised, sprawled development.

          7  It is coming, and in some places it is coming with

          8  surprising speed.  There is the Bel Air Resort

          9  proposal, which you know of, the largest development

         10  in the history of the Catskill Park.  There are the

         11  five casinos, some of which are as close as eight

         12  miles to the watershed that would transform that

         13  part of the southern Catskill, and those are only

         14  the most visible.  Sprawled developments are

         15  advancing throughout the east of Hudson portions of

         16  the Catskill and Delaware Watershed, and throughout

         17  the Croton Watershed, itself.

         18                 To address those problems land

         19  protection is the key.  This is not simply the

         20  opinion of the Natural Resources Defense Council,

         21  that is what the American Water Works Association

         22  says, that is what the National Academy of Science

         23  says, that is what the US Environmental Protection

         24  Agency says, they all identify land purchases and

         25  easement acquisitions as the cornerstones for
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          2  effective watershed management.  And that is

          3  especially true for unfiltered water supplies, and

          4  right now all three of our water supplies are

          5  unfiltered.

          6                 Ask any water quality scientist in

          7  the country, can New York secure long- term

          8  protection of this supply without a continuing and

          9  vigorous ten- year renewal of its watershed land

         10  acquisition program, they will tell you no.  But

         11  unfortunately, New York is behind every other

         12  unfiltered water supply in the nation in terms of

         13  conservation of land and easement acquisition.

         14  Despite the progress that has been made by New York

         15  City since 1997, and it is significant, and we give

         16  DEP credit for the acquisition of approximately

         17  60,000 acres, New York City's holdings of land, even

         18  when combined with the New York State holdings of

         19  land in the watershed, amount to 30 percent.  In

         20  other words, with all of the acquisitions by New

         21  York City, with all of the State lands in Catskill

         22  Park, with even the local land ownership by

         23  municipalities and local land trust, it equals about

         24  30 percent of the Catskill/Delaware water supply.

         25                 In contrast, Seattle, San Francisco
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          2  and Portland, Oregon, the three other major west

          3  coast unfiltered systems, have been able to secure

          4  and protect virtually 100 percent of their

          5  watersheds from pavement and development.

          6  Admittedly, nothing like that is possible for the

          7  New York City watershed.  Indeed, it is essential to

          8  advance land acquisition in partnership with the

          9  Upstate communities on the willing buyer/willing

         10  seller basis.  NRDC believes that, and always has.

         11                 However, even Boston system, which is

         12  most similar to New York's supply, and to New York

         13  City's watershed in many ways, and that system,

         14  Massachusetts has acquired and protected 42 percent

         15  of the greater Boston water supply.  New York City

         16  has made progress, but much more is needed, if we

         17  are to ensure long term filtration and avoid

         18  filtering the Catskill and Delaware system for 40 or

         19  50 years as former DEP Commissioner Chris Ward said

         20  was his goal, not more than a year ago in this very

         21  hearing room.

         22                 Intro. 626 would address this urgent

         23  need in important ways.  It would set a 10- year

         24  goal of 75,000 acres from 2007 to 2017, that is the

         25  major focus of the first section of your bill.  It
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          2  would continue DEP's willing buyer/willing seller

          3  program into 2005 level of effort.  It will have DEP

          4  take greater advantage of cost effective easements.

          5  It would have the Department deposit the necessary

          6  funds to continue this program for the next 10 years

          7  after 2007.  And it would set an annual target of

          8  7,500 acres, which is the rate that DEP land team

          9  has been accomplishing since 1997.  Hopefully, it

         10  would also encourage DEP to make greater use of non-

         11  profit land trusts in accomplishing these

         12  objectives.  This is a sensible and achievable

         13  target.

         14                 In 1997, the watershed agreement in

         15  the FAD had the City identify 355,000 acres as

         16  eligible for acquisition.  To skip to the bottom

         17  line here, there were 104,000 acres in priorities 1

         18  and 2, 96,000 acres in priority 3, and then in the

         19  bottom category priority 4, 155,000 acres.  To date,

         20  the City has acquired, and this answers Jeff Baker's

         21  question, just under 16,000 in priority 1, 9,000

         22  acres in priority 2, 16,000 acres in priority 3, and

         23  19,000 acres, roughly, in priority 4.

         24                 So in the top two categories alone,

         25  priorities 1 and 2, out of 104,000 acres, 25,000
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          2  acres have been acquired, and that doesn't even look

          3  at the 80,000 acres still available for priority 3

          4  lands, and that are also vulnerable and ecologically

          5  significant.

          6                 Let me, briefly, in my remaining time

          7  address the four major objections that have been

          8  made to the land provisions of this statute.

          9                 First, some have argued that this

         10  legislation is in conflict with the 1997 Memorandum

         11  of Agreement.  We are very familiar with that

         12  document, we have read it many times.  We have

         13  reviewed it carefully, we simply do not see the

         14  conflict.  This legislation that is before us today,

         15  applies to land acquisition from 2007 to 2017.  The

         16  MOA land's program only runs through 2007, it says

         17  nothing about what happens thereafter.

         18                 This legislation, like the MOA, is

         19  based on a willing buyer/willing seller basis.

         20  Indeed, in three separate places, today's

         21  legislation specifically highlights and commits to a

         22  willing buyer/willing seller program.  To be sure

         23  the MOA does speak in terms of solicitation targets,

         24  and not acquisition goals, but today's legislation,

         25  the legislation before us today, 626 does not
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          2  mandate any changes.  It only seeks a goal, and its

          3  goal is to protect and acquire strategic and

          4  critical watershed lands.  And if that is the goal,

          5  why not explicitly state it. All this provision does

          6  is seek to continue the level of effort and the

          7  commitment that DEP has been making in the watershed

          8  in terms of land acquisition for another 10 years,

          9  it doesn't do any more than that.

         10                 A second objection to the proposed

         11  legislation is that it would mandate action and

         12  restrict agency flexibility. This objection ignores

         13  the exact language of the statute, which

         14  specifically talks in terms of non- binding goals.

         15  The Council's staff is very talented, they know the

         16  difference between a mandate and a goal, and they

         17  chose and you chose to put non binding goals as the

         18  language in this statute.  To be sure, these goals

         19  are important, but they are not mandates, and they

         20  do not restrict agency flexibility.

         21                 What happens if DEP doesn't achieve

         22  the goal in any particular year?  No fines for the

         23  agency, no penalties for the agency.  The agency

         24  cannot be taken to court, all this statute requires

         25  is that DEP make its best efforts to meet the goal,
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          2  to continue doing what it has been doing since 1997,

          3  because based on the best available scientific

          4  evidence, such a continuation of the land

          5  acquisition program is essential to ensure long-

          6  term watershed protection.

          7                 A third objection, these goals are

          8  unachievable. That we have already answered.  First,

          9  the goals are based directly on what DEP has

         10  actually been accomplishing over the past eight

         11  years.

         12                 And second, there remain over 150,000

         13  eligible acres, just in categories 1, 2, and 3, not

         14  counting the lowest priority lands that have not yet

         15  been acquired.  In other words, of the lands

         16  identified by DEP in the top three priority areas,

         17  in the 1997 watershed agreement, still unprotected,

         18  or over 150,000 acres, this legislation says make

         19  your best efforts to protect 75,000 of those 150,000

         20  or others that you determined are essential for

         21  water quality purposes.

         22                 Finally, a final objection is that

         23  these goals are unnecessary.  Again, the evidence

         24  suggests to the contrary.  The Memorandum of

         25  Agreement does not discuss the land protection
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          2  program after 2007.  There is no current assurance

          3  that this program will be fully funded after 2007.

          4  There is no assurance that DEP staffing level will

          5  remain in place for the next 10 years.  There is no

          6  assurance that the land program itself, will

          7  continue for 10 years following 2007.  In fact that

          8  is an area of special concern, because oversight of

          9  the entire watershed program is in theory, supposed

         10  to turn from the US Environmental Protection Agency

         11  to the New York State Health Department after the

         12  2007 FAD determination.  And the State Health

         13  Department has demonstrated extremely little

         14  understanding and no commitment of the value of

         15  pollution prevention and of watershed protection.

         16  So, if a program is not locked in for 10 years in

         17  2007, or before, there is a real concern that it

         18  would not be renewed by the New York State Health

         19  Department after 2012.

         20                 Finally, look at the prepared

         21  statement of the Coalition of Watershed Towns.  We

         22  all want a partnership, but it has got to be a

         23  partnership based on water quality.  The language in

         24  the Coalition of Watershed Towns' statement, again,

         25  gives reason to believe that some kind of Council
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          2  action to assure the continuation of this program is

          3  necessary.  The coalition says until DEP meets it

          4  current obligations regarding recreational usage,

          5  which I will get to in one final moment, the

          6  coalition opposes any extension of the City's land

          7  permit.

          8                 Finally, they say the pyramis of the

          9  proposed bill is that much more land is required in

         10  order to secure long- term filtration avoidance

         11  determination.  The coalition does not agree with

         12  that premise.

         13                 So, the way I read that, it suggests

         14  that not only is this legislation necessary, but

         15  perhaps even with this legislation there will have

         16  to be significant negotiations with the Council,

         17  with the Coalition of Watershed Towns to ensure that

         18  in fact a vigorous, fair, willing buyer/willing

         19  seller program can continue from 2007 to 2017.

         20                 In conclusion, the real question to

         21  ask yourselves today is will this Council have a

         22  meaningful role in shaping the most important

         23  drinking water plan the City is likely to develop in

         24  this century.  Because of the pace of sprawl, what

         25  happens from 2007 to 2017 will shape this watershed
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          2  forever.  A vigorous, willing buyer/willing seller

          3  land program over that decade is indispensable for

          4  long- term quality protection.  This legislation

          5  would accomplish that objective, and so far it is

          6  the only vehicle available for doing so.  Future

          7  generations will be watching how the Council

          8  responds to this challenge.

          9                 Your legislation is a good step in

         10  the right direction.  We appreciate your introducing

         11  it, we look forward to working with you.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  Eric, we appreciate your statement, and we will come

         15  back to you, once we hear the statements of all the

         16  members of panel.  Thank you.

         17                 Mr. Elliman, I understand you have a

         18  time commitment, so why don't you get your statement

         19  on the record, before you have to go.

         20                 MR. ELLIMAN:  Thank you very much.

         21  My name is Kim Elliman, and I am the CEO of the Open

         22  Space Institute, which is a land conservation

         23  organization or land trust that in the past 25 years

         24  has preserved about 90,000 acres in New York State,

         25  about one- third of that in the Catskill.  And we
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          2  have also protected 1.25 million in northern New

          3  York, in New England.  The total value of that,

          4  those real estate transactions is about $600

          5  million.  And we have been long involved in the

          6  Catskill, in the watershed, in fact, we were

          7  signatory to the Watershed Agreement, which has been

          8  often mentioned.

          9                 We applaud and support this

         10  legislation, Intro. 626 as an achievable, indeed, a

         11  model that preserves ecological values, both the

         12  ecological, economic and biological of the

         13  watershed, and preserves the quality and quantity of

         14  our excellent urban water supply.

         15                 A month ago, actually, some interest,

         16  a month ago the Economist Magazine in its "Earth

         17  Day" issue, noted that the New York City watershed

         18  policy - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What magazine?

         20                 MR. ELLIMAN:  The Economist, in its

         21  lead article, in fact, on the State of World's

         22  Environment, applauded the New York City's watershed

         23  initiative to purchase land and improve agricultural

         24  practices, because they said it exemplified the

         25  forefront to recognizing and valuing ecosystem
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          2  services.  The decision to protect the watershed in

          3  lieu of building a filtration plant has won world

          4  attention and praise.  And like Eric and Al Appleton

          5  before, I think that the idea of extending another

          6  10 years is an excellent idea, and again, a

          7  laudatory goal of this legislation.

          8                 In fact, if you talk to most natural

          9  resource economists, they look to the New York City

         10  watershed as a model for what developing countries,

         11  as well as mature economies can do, to use natural

         12  systems, not technologies to cleanse our air and

         13  water.

         14                 I would also say that this bill is

         15  timely. While New York City is to be praised for

         16  allocating resources before a crisis came, that

         17  cannot always be said of some our neighboring

         18  communities and states.  By way of contrast, look at

         19  New Jersey, concerned about the watershed of

         20  northern New Jersey, which supplies water for almost

         21  as many as New York City's watershed, 8 million

         22  residents, the New Jersey legislation last year has

         23  belatedly enacted an ambitious land use and land

         24  acquisition plan, including a moratorium, 800,000

         25  acres in the New York and New Jersey Highlands.  It
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          2  has budgeted $100 million per year to purchase land,

          3  and it is seeking still more.  But in the end it is

          4  playing catch up in protecting its watershed,

          5  competing with developers for open space, while land

          6  prices escalate and pitting rural interests against

          7  urban, in fact, in a far more dramatic way than I

          8  think New York City's model MOU has done.

          9                 And indeed, New York City because of

         10  what New Jersey has done, might just find itself in

         11  a similar position with the aforementioned

         12  moratorium, larger developers, in our experience,

         13  have leap frogged over the Highlands and into the

         14  counties west of the Hudson River, Orange, Rockland,

         15  Sullivan, Ulster, and Green Counties.  Hopefully

         16  erstwhile casino development proposes still more

         17  development in and around New York City's Cat/Del

         18  watershed.  And recently, the Albany Times Union

         19  reported that land prices in the Hudson Valley,

         20  including some of the watershed counties surged 30

         21  percent last year.  New York City should and has to

         22  invest now with foresight to protect critical buffer

         23  lands around the core holdings, of New York City,

         24  the 19 reservoirs and immediately adjacent acreage.

         25                 Specifically, Intro. 626 sets clear,
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          2  achievable goals protecting, particularly 75,000

          3  acres over 10 years, and I think as every one said

          4  that is a goal, having been involved in about 15

          5  years of land acquisition and 400 deals, some

          6  mature, some don't, some years you have 10,000

          7  acres, some of the years you are going to have 6,000

          8  acres.  But as a long- term goal, I think it is both

          9  plausible and laudatory.  And as noted, compliments

         10  previous public investment and watershed protection.

         11  We applaud the long time frame, as well, and I think

         12  in some respects this gives DEP some certainty with

         13  the willing buyer/willing seller program, it is

         14  necessary for the City to be engaged, with ample

         15  staff and funds, for the long haul.  Buying land,

         16  particularly key properties, requires patience and

         17  resources, and this bill provides for both.

         18                 With increasing land ownership, in

         19  our experience, comes increasing maintenance and

         20  stewardship costs.  Conservation easements, or non-

         21  development easements, while stretching acquisition

         22  dollars, ironically, placed increased burdens on

         23  policing land holdings and scouting for violations.

         24  It is an irony that if you own something in fee, it

         25  is less cumbersome than owning an easement.  Because
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          2  policing and enforcement is a mutual and reciprocal

          3  activity in the latter case.  Intro. 626 recognizes

          4  this in Section 24- 369, and we urge the City

          5  Council and DEP to staff the agency's police force

          6  adequately.

          7                 Also in that section, this bill

          8  recognizes the need to craft recreation plans for

          9  New York City lands that acknowledge the reality

         10  that is more City ownership of the watershed would

         11  lead to new pressures to multiple us of those lands.

         12    Again, planning with local community, engagement

         13  should forestall some future problems.

         14                 In sum, we endorse the bill, support

         15  its goals, support the thrust to invest more soon in

         16  the critical watershed areas.  Thank you.  And thank

         17  you for your indulgence in letting me testify now,

         18  and my apologies for having to leave in a moment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Elliman. Because you can't stay for the entire panel

         21  to testify, I will sort of break my own rule and

         22  just ask you one quick question before you go.  It

         23  has been said, it has even been reported today in

         24  the newspaper that the some of the signatories of

         25  the MOA, you know, would see my bill as, you know,
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          2  inconsistent with the MOA. In your view is that it

          3  is not inconsistent, or violates the spirit or

          4  whatever.  And so this has been the comment which

          5  has been brought forth.

          6                 MR. ELLIMAN:  In my view, I think

          7  that they have misread your bill.  So, as a

          8  signatory we see, and again, I haven't read it as

          9  often as Eric, the MOU, and has been probably 10

         10  years, but there is nothing in your bill, which I

         11  think violates the MOU.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Elliman.  I appreciate your being here.

         14                 MR. ELLIMAN:  Thank you very much for

         15  letting me testify.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  The

         17  remaining witnesses of the panel can testify in

         18  whatever order kind of makes sense for you.  I

         19  always like to see what happens when I say that,

         20  people don't really know what to do.

         21                 MR. GELB:  Well being this is my

         22  first time testifying ever, I definitely don't know

         23  what to do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, please

         25  state your name for the record.
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          2                 MR. GELB:  Sure, my name is Yigal

          3  Gelb, and I am testifying for New York City Audubon.

          4  And before I do that, I wanted to thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman, for allowing New York City Audubon to

          6  testify before this Committee on this extremely

          7  important matter.  New York City Audubon is a

          8  10,000- member organization in New York City, in all

          9  the five boroughs, and we are committed to habitat

         10  protection and the protection of wild birds for the

         11  benefit of all New Yorkers.

         12                 I am going to testify, of course, in

         13  support of 626, and we also submitted comments for

         14  the record.  While we understand that there are very

         15  serious issues being considered here today, we would

         16  like to point out some of the environmental benefits

         17  that could result from this bill, and I will

         18  definitely not try to repeat anything that has been

         19  said, because I realize--

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me kind of,

         21  because the hour is getting late, I am trying to

         22  avoid having to put people on the clock, which I

         23  probably should have done by now.  But I am going to

         24  try to avoid that.  So my contribution is that I am

         25  really going to limit my questions so that I can get
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          2  as much, you know, information from that way to this

          3  way, as I possibly can. But I will ask people, all

          4  the witnesses from here on to sort of, you know,

          5  stick to the legislation, and you know, what do they

          6  like or don't like about it.

          7                 So you know, broad, you know,

          8  philosophical perspectives on potential benefits or

          9  whatever.  But you know, to the extent that people

         10  can focus their comments, you know, specifically on

         11  the provisions of the bill that they support or

         12  don't support, would be helpful.

         13                 MR. GELB:  Okay.  I think my, I think

         14  New York City's Audubon's contribution will be

         15  fairly limited but significant in the sense that New

         16  York Audubon has just come out with a book called

         17  the important bird areas of New York Habitats Worth

         18  Protecting.  And it is interesting that out of those

         19  136 areas, 70,000 acres are in the Ashokan Reservoir

         20  Area, 310,000 acres are in the Catskill Peaks area,

         21  5,000 are in the Pepacton Reservoir Area, 65,000

         22  acres are in the Cannonsville Reservoir/Steam Mill

         23  Area.  And why is this important?  This is important

         24  because in those areas alone, are 10 so- called

         25  species at risk.  Species that are considered worth
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          2  protecting by either the Federal government or New

          3  York State agencies, and they are either endangered,

          4  threatened or of special concern.  And so we think

          5  that that is an enormous benefit that would accrue

          6  or arise from such legislation.  A mere protection

          7  of habitat and limiting fragmentation of that

          8  habitat, is extremely important.  It is also

          9  extremely important for 14, what are called,

         10   "Responsibility Species Assemblages," which are an

         11  additional 14 species of birds that require

         12  contiguous habitat.  In other words, habitat that

         13  would be fragmented would risk these species, and I

         14  definitely don't want to read the whole list, but it

         15  is on the record, so people are welcome to read it.

         16  And we really, we want to stress that these 24

         17  species that include Water Birds, and Warblers, and

         18  Rapters, they will all benefit from ensuring that

         19  habitat fragmentation is, at least, somewhat

         20  minimized or somewhat limited, due to the purchases

         21  of these lands.  So we strongly support the

         22  purchasing or the continuation of purchasing

         23  habitat, because that habitat is extremely important

         24  to birds, but also any other wildlife there.

         25                 And I guess, how about let me
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          2  conclude here, because I feel like we are going

          3  long.  And I just want to summarize and say that for

          4  all the above reasons that I have stated, New York

          5  City Audubon heartedly supports the measures call

          6  for in Intro. 626.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          8  much.  You did great for your first time, too.

          9                 MR. GELB:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sir.

         11                 MR. FLYNN:  Mr. Chairman, my name is

         12  Irvine Flynn, I think that was probably my

         13  handwriting that is illegible.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh yeah, I

         15  couldn't get the handwriting.

         16                 MR. FLYNN:  And I am President of

         17  Environmental Advocates of New York, which is based

         18  in Albany.  For 36 years, Environmental Advocates

         19  has championed the protection of natural resources

         20  by working to ensure that the public policies of New

         21  York State are environmentally sound.

         22                 Our work has been instrumental to the

         23  passage of our major environmental laws from the

         24  State Environmental Quality Review Act to the most

         25  recently the Brownfields Cleanup Act. Over the years
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          2  we have learned that there is no substitute for

          3  sound and far- sighted public policy in protecting

          4  the health, well being of New Yorkers.  Private

          5  enterprise, which will always be the engine that

          6  drives our economic prosperity works best within the

          7  framework of sound and far- sighted public policy.

          8                 This is true generally, but it is

          9  particularly true when it comes to land use.  If

         10  there is money to be made from residential

         11  subdivision, there will always be developers ready

         12  to construct it.  And my point is not to imply

         13  criticism of them doing so.  Protection of critical,

         14  natural resources that might be degraded or

         15  destroyed in the process is the responsibility of

         16  government.  And we believe that the willing

         17  buyer/willing seller watershed protection program

         18  administered by the DEP is an example of such sound

         19  exercise of the governmental responsibility.

         20                 In recent years, many areas of New

         21  York State, including portions of the City's Upstate

         22  Watershed, have faced the thread of ill- planned,

         23  sprawled development.  New York State reportedly

         24  loses an average of 174 acres each day to develop

         25  them.  During a recent three- year period the
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          2  population of New York City Metropolitan Area, grew

          3  by 13 percent, while the urbanized area increased by

          4  60 percent.  In 2003, a Brooking Institute, Cornell

          5  University Study, Sprawled Without Growth, the

          6  Upstate Paradox, looked at Upstate growth patterns

          7  for the 15 year period from 1982 until 1997.  It

          8  concluded that amount of urbanized land increased 30

          9  percent, while the population grew just 2.6 percent.

         10                 This suburbanization trend has

         11  ominous implications for the Downstate, New York

         12  water supply.  Nearly half of the State's population

         13  depends on reservoirs, for drinking water on

         14  reservoirs located as far as 125 miles from the City

         15  in the Catskill Mountains.  The Catskill and

         16  Delaware Reservoir systems remain unfiltered, and to

         17  ensure high quality water from these unfiltered

         18  reservoirs require wise management of watershed

         19  land.

         20                 Forest and meadows and wetlands must

         21  be protected so that they can serve as natural

         22  buffers to pollution.  In part with such concerns in

         23  mine, environmental advocate system supporting the

         24  smart growth agenda from New York.  One of our key

         25  initiatives has been the State's community
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          2  preservation act, which would allow localities to

          3  adopt after local referendum, a real estate transfer

          4  tax of up to 2 percent for the purpose of

          5  establishing a community preservation fund that

          6  would be exclusively devoted to local land

          7  conservation.

          8                 Another important strategy to advance

          9  smart growth goals and protects sensitive ecosystems

         10  is to acquire important lands by fee simple

         11  ownership or safeguard them by the use of

         12  conservation easements.  This especially needed in

         13  watershed areas that drain into New York City

         14  Reservoirs, which are presently unfiltered.  We

         15  believe that it is both possible and necessary to

         16  advance the economic vitality for Catskill

         17  residents, preserve special quality of life in this

         18  region, and also safeguard critical watershed lands.

         19

         20                 For this reason, the Environmental

         21  Advocates of New York joins with you and other

         22  sponsors of Intro. 626, and supporting the

         23  continuation of the City's willing buyer/willing

         24  seller land acquisition program for another 10

         25  years.  Its goal of acquiring 75,000 additional
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          2  acres over this period seems to us, quite

          3  achievable, especially if the easements, if

          4  easements are more frequently sought and obtained,

          5  and if the services of the State's non- profit land

          6  trust organizations are utilized.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Flynn, thank you for being here.  Julie.

         10                 MS. MANKIEWICZ:  My name is Julie

         11  Mankiewicz.  I am the Director of Research and

         12  Education at the GAIA Institute, and I want to thank

         13  you very much, Chairman Gennaro for inviting the

         14  GAIA Institute to testify here.

         15                 I think my testimony might be

         16  extremely short, which might be a relief because I

         17  am a little nervous because a lot of the testimony

         18  has to do with issues in addition to what is in the

         19  legislation.  So I will get to that in a minute, and

         20  you can cut me off when you think it is advisable.

         21                 But I will start by saying the New

         22  York City faces two very clear challenges and the

         23  effort to maintain the current status of its

         24  watershed.

         25                 The first is to maintain its current
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          2  drinking water quality, and the second is to ensure

          3  the security of its water supply infrastructure.

          4  And in order to ensure that both challenges are met,

          5  New York City should continue and reinforce the

          6  present policy of willing buyer/willing seller land

          7  acquisition for the next 10 years.  And we applaud

          8  the Council for these measures that contribute to

          9  its continuation.

         10                 So we heartedly support this, and I

         11  think Eric has discussed in detail all of the ways

         12  in which, I agree with everything that he said, so

         13  all of the ways in which we think this is very, very

         14  important legislation.

         15                 I then get to my however, and it is

         16  mainly that once land is acquired a lot of the

         17  important work begins, and so we would say that

         18  while land acquisition is a necessary step, in

         19  addition, we believe that rather than tallying up

         20  the percentage of ownership in the land, water

         21  quality aims are likely to be best served by

         22  protecting the working, biogeochemical filters and

         23  the water holding systems in the watershed.  And so

         24  this is a question not so much of ownership, but of

         25  landscape management of ecosystem services.  So this
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          2  is, and much of what then comes in the testimony,

          3  which has been submitted, are examples of ways in

          4  which once the land has been acquired, has to be

          5  both maintained, and in fact, can be actively

          6  enhanced in terms of the ecosystem services that

          7  actually maintain the water quality.  I can go into

          8  that now.

          9                 I think that what we are encouraging

         10  then is either in further legislation, or if

         11  possible in this one, to try to assist DEP actually

         12  is moving in that direction in a lot of very

         13  creative ways that we applaud.  And so I think our

         14  suggestion is, if it can be done here, or further

         15  down the road, that the Council can consider those

         16  kinds of measures as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Certainly,

         18  certainly, thank you.  And I think I guess I will

         19  start the questioning in common stages, which I am

         20  going to keep brief for the sake of the other

         21  witnesses that I would like to get on, and I don't

         22  want to start using the clock.

         23                 I think that a discussion that

         24  perhaps would be more appropriate in the context of

         25  an oversight hearing that we may have, you know, in
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          2  the future, or perhaps we should have on sort of the

          3  management of watershed lands.  That could something

          4  where we talk about recreation usage, and where we

          5  talk about types of programs and touch on things

          6  that we ought to be doing on the holdings that we

          7  have.  That would be more, that testimony would be

          8  more appropriate for that setting.

          9                 And so, I know that staff does have

         10  an oversight hearing on this topic contemplated, it

         11  is on our list of things to do.  And you can be sure

         12  that we will be reaching out to you as we always do

         13  to you and Paul for, you are people we go to for

         14  that kind of input, and so we appreciate that.  So

         15  thank you, Julie, and thank you for your support.

         16                 I guess going backwards, I guess

         17  making my way back to Eric, ultimately Mr. Flynn,

         18  you know, thank you for your support, thank you for

         19  being here.  And particularly for your

         20  organization's great commitment to smart growth.

         21  You have been a real beacon with regard to that.

         22  And you know the perils of sort of over

         23  suburbanization, and we thank you and Environmental

         24  Advocates for being great champions on that front.

         25                 And Mr. Gelb, I know more about
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          2  habitat than I did before when you spoke.  And we

          3  look forward to having you come back to the

          4  Committee, and you know, we may just make you a

          5  regular.

          6                 And Eric, what can I say, you gave,

          7  your statement was wonderful and its

          8  comprehensiveness.  And I appreciate the very, very

          9  compelling witness that you bring to the need for us

         10  to do something to make sure, as you said, we have

         11  got precious little overall of the highest priority

         12  lands.  And we all should be thinking about the

         13  legacy we leave to the people who come after us.

         14  And I just thank you for the compelling case that

         15  you made regarding this important bill.

         16                 And I am going to have to leave it

         17  there for the sake of the other witnesses that we

         18  want to get on.

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  If I can just add one

         20  final point, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  In my hasten to

         23  conclude, I neglected two provisions I just want to

         24  point out.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But we do like
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          2  when people have haste to conclude, we always like

          3  that.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Time me.  One

          5  provision, sorry, Eric Goldstein, Natural Resources

          6  Defense Council.  One provision that we commented on

          7  in our written testimony, but I want to highlight

          8  here, it directs DEP to undertake an continuing and

          9  vigorous program for watershed protection in the

         10  Croton system, and to provide matching funds for

         11  that effort.  It isn't everything that is required

         12  to fulfill the City's promise to continue to advance

         13  watershed protection in Croton, but it is a start,

         14  and it is very important, and we endorse it

         15  wholeheartedly.

         16                 The second position and demonstrating

         17  that both NRDC and the Coalition of Watershed Towns

         18  sometimes can agree. And in the spirit of

         19  partnership I say that we endorse the provision of

         20  your legislation.  It encourages DEP to be more

         21  sensitive to increase recreational opportunities in

         22  the watershed.  That too is a very important

         23  objective, and we thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  Eric, and I thank this panel.
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          2                 Okay, pardon us while we do a little

          3  bit of choreography here.  The next panel will be

          4  Jim Tripp and Cathleen Breen.  So that is the panel

          5  we have now to be followed by David Ferguson, Paul

          6  Gallay, and Jeanne Flatow.  Oh, Paul Gallay, Jeanne

          7  Flatow, David Ferguson, Ellen Hartig and Greg

          8  Wilson, who is the panel that follows this panel.

          9                 Okay, Donna will do the honors.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         11  right hands. In the testimony that you are about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         14                 ALL:  I do.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And are there

         17  written statements, are they right here?  Cathy, you

         18  are with the Clean Drinking Water Coalition?

         19                 MS. BREEN:  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         21                 MS. BREEN:  Good afternoon.  Jim has

         22  so graciously allowed to go first.  Good afternoon.

         23  My name is Cathleen Breen. I am a Watershed

         24  Protection Coordinator for the New York Public

         25  Interest Research Group Fund (NYPIRG), and I am
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          2  speaking today on behalf of the Clean Drinking Water

          3  Coalition members, the Catskill Center for

          4  Conservational DNR Development, Riverkeeper, and

          5  NYPIRG.  All of whom are environmental signatories

          6  to the 1997 Watershed Memorandum of Agreement.

          7                 We would like to take this

          8  opportunity to express our serious concerns about

          9  the proposed legislation, Intro. 626, and yes, we

         10  have read and understand the legislation.

         11                 The Coalition has the utmost respect

         12  for the Council and this particular Committee.  Your

         13  oversight hearings have brought much needed

         14  attention to issues that are often overlooked in the

         15  public domain.  We believe that although the intent

         16  of this legislation, and indeed, the Council is

         17  commendable, certain problems in the legislation

         18  exists that must be addressed.  As you know Upstate

         19  communities are the stewards of the New York City

         20  Drinking Water Reservoirs, and working with these

         21  communities is key to protecting these natural

         22  resources. The Landmark Watershed Agreement laid out

         23  a comprehensive plan to do just that, protecting the

         24  integrity of New York City's water supply, and

         25  fostering environmentally sound economic growth in
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          2  the watershed.

          3                 The agreement is a framework for

          4  watershed protection that is seen as a model across

          5  the country and around the world.  For reasons set

          6  forth below, we have concerns that parts of the

          7  legislation as currently proposed are inconsistent

          8  with the agreement, and we hope for the opportunity

          9  to work with the Council to address these concerns.

         10                 And just to deviate from my testimony

         11  for a minute, I would like to just clarify something

         12  with respect to the Watershed Agreement.  The

         13  Watershed Agreement doesn't end in 2007.  The

         14  Watershed Protection and Partnership Council of

         15  which the Chairman sits on as well as I do, doesn't

         16  close its doors, and we don't all go home in 2007.

         17  The programs of the Watershed Agreement are set, and

         18  all of the programs are FAD driven, which is the

         19  Filtration Avoidance Determination.

         20                 At the heart of the agreement to

         21  which New York City is the signatory, is the land

         22  acquisition program, which prioritizes the land

         23  throughout the nearly 2,00 square mile watershed for

         24  acquisition by either fee simple ownership or

         25  conservation easements.  This method of prioritizing
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          2  land makes sense.  As environmental signatories to

          3  the agreement, we fully support a continuing, robust

          4  land acquisition program.  However, the quality of

          5  the acquisition is as important as the quantity.

          6                 Intro. 626 sets an acquisition goal

          7  of the number of acres that must be purchased.  If

          8  the City is forced to meet a goal through this

          9  method, - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, it doesn't,

         11  it does not. But I just wanted to jump in there, but

         12  go ahead.

         13                 MS. BREEN:  If the City is forced to

         14  meet a goal through a method, than there is a risk

         15  that marginal land will be purchased to meet that

         16  goal.  This may not protect the watershed as well as

         17  acquiring land in priority areas.

         18                 Moreover, the Watershed Agreement

         19  establishes solicitation goals for land acquisition.

         20    We do not believe that the City can switch from a

         21  solicitation goal- based program to an acquisition

         22  goal- based program without working with all the

         23  agreement signatories.

         24                 This legislation does touch upon a

         25  land acquisition issue that we believe is critical
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          2  to the integrity of the entire system, yet often

          3  overlooked: Acquiring land in the Croton Watershed.

          4  As you know, plans are under way to filter the

          5  Croton water supply, and although the City has

          6  committed to continuing a multi- barrier approach,

          7  including land acquisition, there is no funding

          8  really allocated.  We urge the Council to focus

          9  attention on much needed Croton land acquisition and

         10  create specific legislation that lays out a sensible

         11  strategy and funding mechanism to do so.

         12                 Absent these specific requirements,

         13  we fear that lumping a Croton strategy in with

         14  Cat/Del watershed efforts will not give the Croton

         15  enough priority.  And filtration, as we know, does

         16  not guarantee public safety as evidenced in the

         17  water- borne disease outbreak in Milwaukee.

         18  Development pressure in the Croton, indeed, the

         19  entire East of Hudson Watershed is tremendous.  And

         20  as the former Commissioner Al Appleton mentioned the

         21  Kensico is a critical linchpin to the system.  So

         22  the City must step up its efforts there.

         23                 One of the more pressing issues in

         24  the watershed today is the recreational use of city-

         25  owned lands.  Intro. 626 would require land

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  management plans for newly acquired lands.  We

          3  request that in addition to this, the Council ensure

          4  that the New York City DEP engages in really good

          5  faith efforts to work on a sensible plan for the

          6  current, or long- term plan for expanded

          7  recreational opportunities on current watershed

          8  lands as appropriate.  Again, in order to protect

          9  the watershed.

         10                 Addressing future land acquisitions

         11  only, ignores this current important problem.  To be

         12  sure recreationists normally are good stewards of

         13  the land and act as watchdogs on watershed lands,

         14  and has been the case.

         15                 The legislation also addresses

         16  watershed security. Enhancing the security of the

         17  watershed by increasing the watershed police ranks

         18  and pay, and enhancing their communication systems

         19  are noble pursuits that we share.  However, in

         20  addition to requiring reporting on these issues,

         21  many of which the Council receives during budget

         22  hearings, we urge the Council to work with the

         23  Office Labor Relations and other appropriate

         24  agencies to determine the reason why the police who

         25  are charged with protecting our water supply, such

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  an important mission, have a distinct disadvantages

          3  in their pay.

          4                 Intro. 626 also seeks to have DEP

          5  provide its Long- term Watershed Protection Program

          6  to the Council prior to submitting it to the EPA.

          7  We wholeheartedly agree with opening up the review

          8  process to the public, but believe that there should

          9  be a commitment from DEP, New York State, Department

         10  of Environmental Conservation, the entity that

         11  issues those land permits, as well as EPA to work

         12  with the Council and other watershed stakeholders

         13  including the environmental community to ensure that

         14  the City's plan is superior.

         15                 We thank the Council for supporting

         16  the goals of watershed protection.  Clearly, we are

         17  all interested in protecting the purity of New York

         18  City drinking water supply, and the security of its

         19  water supply infrastructure.  We respectfully

         20  request the opportunity to work with the honorable

         21  Council to address our concerns with Intro. 626 to

         22  that we can achieve these important goals.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  thank you, Cathy.

         25                 MR. TRIPP:  Mr. Chair, my name is
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          2  James Tripp.  I am General Counsel of Environmental

          3  Defense.  I also serve as Chair of the New York City

          4  Water Board.  I am here testifying on behalf of

          5  Environmental Defense.  Although, without a doubt my

          6  thoughts on the subject are influenced by or colored

          7  by my experiences of a long- term member of the

          8  Water Board.

          9                 We are for, for obvious reasons,

         10  strong supporters of watershed protection in the

         11  Catskill/Delaware watershed system.  It is a very

         12  powerful tool to protect the long- term water

         13  quality of the system.  It is a very powerful tool

         14  through land acquisition and land management to keep

         15  out of the tributaries to the water supply system,

         16  increasingly esoteric kinds of contaminants that are

         17  a growing concern to the US Environmental Protection

         18  Agency.  And clearly continuing a watershed

         19  protection program is going to be a critical

         20  component of the Filtration Avoidance Determination

         21  of the future.  The question is, so we share all the

         22  concerns that this bill puts forward, the question

         23  is, what is the best way or the most effective way

         24  to ensure this program, the continuation of this

         25  program, how much land should be acquired, what kind
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          2  of solicitation should be made, what should be

          3  protected in the long term, and the short- term in

          4  the watershed, how do we most effectively protect

          5  the most important land?

          6                 As you know under the first two FADs,

          7  the City has acquired somewhat over 60,000 acres and

          8  that program is continuing, and that is an enormous

          9  success.  Should the current level of effort,

         10  however, that is defined in terms of solicitations

         11  continue, yes, should it be expanded, possibly. But

         12  there are three criteria that we would have in mind

         13  for this program.  One is, it has to be done in a

         14  manner which is going to work for the watershed

         15  communities.  Second, ideally the attention of the

         16  Department would be focused on the highest priority

         17  lands, and third, of course, all this has to be, the

         18  cost of this program has to be reflected in the

         19  Capital Budget. And I think everyone needs to be

         20  clear as to what the cost consequences are of a

         21  watershed protection program, as well as the cost

         22  consequences of not doing it and having to pay for

         23  filtration.  But clearly there are capital and

         24  operating consequences to acquiring more and more

         25  land.  Not only Capital, whatever the cost of land
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          2  may be, one year, five, ten years from now, but

          3  there are property tax consequences.  The City, in

          4  the next fiscal year expects to spend around $100

          5  million on property taxes in the watershed

          6  communities, that is on both the physical

          7  infrastructure, as well as land.  We have reason to

          8  believe that those assessments might go up.  That is

          9  about one- eighth of the operating costs, you know

         10  for the Department.  So there are those concerns.

         11                 I guess my suggestion would be at

         12  this stage, I guess, I don't have a current concern

         13  that this program isn't going to continue, is that

         14  the Council sets forth its concerns, state a goal of

         15  continuing the kind of effort, and as you do in the

         16  next section, I guess, ask for at some point in the

         17  future six months, or eight months, a report from

         18  the Department as to some of the details about the

         19  current program, what has worked well, what hasn't

         20  worked well, what the cost has been, if you are

         21  interested in that, what its plans are for the

         22  future, what kind of commitments it is planning to

         23  make on the Capital program, and you know, solicit

         24  information that would help you to decide how to

         25  shape more detailed legislation.
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          2                 If in fact it turns that the

          3  Department, for whatever reason, and I certainly,

          4  personally hope this isn't the case, is not going to

          5  continue this program, current level of

          6  solicitations with the money to support that kind of

          7  program, then I think you ought to step up and

          8  decide what you are going to do and intervene.  But

          9  my suggestion would be that you find out more from

         10  the Department as to what its plans are and how they

         11  are going to unfold over the next six to twelve

         12  months as they gear up, as the Department gears up

         13  to negotiate the next FAD.  And at the same time you

         14  can ask the Department how this program has worked

         15  with the watershed communities and how to improve

         16  that kind of relationship.

         17                 Although, as far as the Croton

         18  Watershed is concerned, I, personally, would

         19  certainly like to see the Department to commit

         20  additional dollars to support the Watershed

         21  Protection efforts there.  I implore the initiative

         22  that the City took to put up, I believe it was $25

         23  million to acquire additional lands in northern

         24  Westchester with those communities. I happen to

         25  Chair the Highlands Coalition that through TPL and
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          2  its New York Committee, Erik Kulleseid, has played a

          3  major role in persuading the County Legislature in

          4  Putnam County, and the Executive Director to move

          5  ahead with a $20 million Open Space Bond Act.  This

          6  would be the first time that Putnam County has put

          7  up any of its own money in support of this kind of

          8  effort. And I think there are, and of course, the

          9  Highlands Coalition played a major role in getting

         10  the US Congress last November to pass the Highlands

         11  Conservation Act.  So there is an opportunity for

         12  federal money coming in as well.

         13                 I guess I would be a little bit

         14  apprehensive of a sort of a direction to the

         15  Department that it sort of has to match, the

         16  suggestion is dollar for dollar whatever local

         17  governments do.  That could turn out to be a lot of

         18  money, if the environmental community, including the

         19  Highlands Coalition is successful in getting not

         20  only Putnam County, maybe Duchess County and some of

         21  these towns in Putnam County other put up money.

         22  But again, if you were going to solicit additional

         23  information from the Department, I think it would be

         24  fair and reasonable to ask, what its plans are for

         25  the Croton Watershed.
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          2                 But my sense is, one of the reasons

          3  that the Department has not spent more money in

          4  parts of the Croton Watershed, is not only because

          5  those lands may be of lower priority, but because

          6  those local units of government have not put up

          7  money of their own.  Indeed, to my knowledge the

          8  only money that Putnam County has spent on land

          9  acquisition in the Croton Watershed, has been in

         10  effect City economic development money.  To date, it

         11  has not put up any of its own money.

         12                 As for the last section of this bill,

         13  I guess I have, as a lawyer, some sense in my mind

         14  as to what the appropriate role is for a legislative

         15  body and what should be left to administrative

         16  agencies.  And I would agree with Cathleen Breen, it

         17  would serve DEP well to have a process that solicits

         18  views from all of us, as to what ought to be going

         19  into the next FAD into the watershed program.  What

         20  is important and what we would be willing to

         21  support, because all these things have costs. And I

         22  think it is important for all of us to indicate, if

         23  we are supporting these programs, we are going to

         24  support the consequences, including the rate

         25  consequences of these programs. There should be a
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          2  more open process, and it would be good for you to

          3  find out what that is going to be.  I am

          4  apprehensive having a process where you, the City

          5  Council, the Legislative Body, reviews, and is in a

          6  position where you have to approve a program put

          7  forward by an administrative body of the City to an

          8  administrative body of the United States government.

          9                 So I think without getting this very

         10  distinguished legislative body embroiled in that

         11  kind of a process, I think there are other ways to

         12  skin the Cat.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you both

         15  for your thoughtful and comprehensive comments, and

         16  I appreciate the partnership that I had with both of

         17  you through the years.  In the interest of getting

         18  to the other witnesses, I am going to restrict my

         19  comments and questions, well I mean, I am going to

         20  forego the opportunity to do that, and just thank

         21  you for the ongoing partnership that we have, and

         22  for your deep, deep commitment to preserving the

         23  watershed  So I thank you both.

         24                 And Donna is going to call the next

         25  panel.  I have to be excused for about two minutes.
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          2  I will be back in this chair, two minutes would be

          3  120 seconds, right. I will be right back as the next

          4  panel takes its, you can swear them in, in the

          5  meantime so they are all ready for me.

          6                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Eugenia Flatow,

          7  Craig Wilson, David Ferguson, Paul Gallay, and Ellen

          8  Hartig.  Please raise your right hand.  In the

          9  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

         10  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and

         11  nothing but the truth?

         12                 ALL:  I do.

         13                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sorry to keep

         15  you waiting. Thank you, thank you all for being here

         16  and thank you for your patience.  It has been a long

         17  hearing, and I am trying not to put people on the

         18  clock, so I will just stop talking and let you guys

         19  do the talking.  So, in whatever order you which to

         20  proceed.  How about Jeanne?

         21                 MS. FLATOW:  I want to congratulate

         22  you for turning out the entire environmental

         23  community of New York City with a reasonably

         24  straight position on most of what they have said.  I

         25  congratulate you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3                 MS. FLATOW:  I have a couple of

          4  comments.  I am glad that I am following Jim Tripp,

          5  because I went their meeting and he was good enough

          6  to let me speak on the question of exactly what is

          7  going to happen to our water charges.  We have quite

          8  a few consent orders with no triage, with nobody

          9  looking at what is important, with nobody looking at

         10  where we are going and how we are getting there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jeanne, come

         12  on, the bill, the bill, the bill, the bill, come on.

         13                 MS. FLATOW:  Well, I do not hear many

         14  people saying this.  And I will say it because if

         15  Chris Ward had gone with all the consent orders that

         16  he faced when he came in, newer water charges would

         17  have been out of this world.  And I would just like

         18  to take the opportunity to put that.

         19                 I happen to call both, Al Appleton

         20  and Goldstein to find out what they were going to

         21  say.  Because I quick figured that I would be able

         22  to say I would go with everything that they say.

         23  And I do.

         24                 I just believe that we have to get

         25  the role of the Council put up in a better way so
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          2  that you elected people, representing all of us nine

          3  million people, have a role that is recognized.  I

          4  am not clear that you have done that yet.  I do

          5  believe it will take some sort of charter revision.

          6  I am not a lawyer, so I do not know what it will

          7  really mean.  But the fact remains, that since we no

          8  longer have a Board of Estimate with any role on the

          9  budget, we have never had a balance to what the

         10  executives and the Mayor has done for the City.  And

         11  I believe it is important that you be representing

         12  us, and that we do have that role.  I do not know

         13  what it will take.

         14                 I would also like to turn out, that I

         15  believe EPA, who did not want to come into the

         16  newspaper today, surprise, surprise, has the

         17  obligation to tell us what their criteria are going

         18  to be for extending the FAD, so that we know what we

         19  are working for, and how we have to go about it.  We

         20  did that the last time.  We got them to give what

         21  they had to do to get that FAD.  And I think that it

         22  is important that we do that again.

         23                 I only want to know how we can have

         24  an increase in recreation and have security.  I just

         25  do not understand that. And I am glad that a great
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          2  many reasons have been given to you as to why we

          3  should limit that recreation.  I understand they

          4  feel it is theirs to have.  But the fact remains,

          5  that we also have many problems that have to be

          6  recognized.  And I do not know how anybody can do

          7  the security job if we are going to have people all

          8  over the place doing hunting, and doing all kinds of

          9  other things.  There has to be some limit to that.

         10                 And I do feel that we need some

         11  formal place that we can all be heard on what is

         12  going on in the changes in this watershed.  We

         13  cannot all be traveling upstate to listen to what

         14  the Partnership Council does.  And I think this is a

         15  wonderful opportunity and I welcome it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you Jeanne.

         18                 MR. GALLAY:  I brought my own timer.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         20                 MR. GALLAY:  My name is Paul Gallay,

         21  I am the Executive Director of Westchester Land

         22  Trust, and a former member of the staff of the

         23  Department of Environmental Conservation. And I

         24  appreciate, very much, the opportunity to testify

         25  today.
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          2                 I come bearing some good news in

          3  regard to the Croton and Kensico Systems.  In the

          4  last five years, in Westchester County, 13

          5  municipalities have all put before their voters

          6  referendums to authorize the spending of money for

          7  open space preservation.  And all 13 have passed.  A

          8  number of other municipalities have joined suit.

          9  And now there is $38 million throughout the County

         10  of Westchester to use for open space preservation.

         11  The County of Westchester has increased its

         12  commitment, the City of New York made its recent

         13  commitment of $25 million in the Croton, and the

         14  State of New York has increased its commitment for

         15  watershed protection commensurately.

         16                 So we have a unique opportunity to

         17  seize the day on land preservation in the Croton and

         18  Kenisco Systems.  And for the reasons expressed by

         19  others, we cannot wait.  I am happy to say that the

         20  Department of Environmental Protection has been part

         21  of the two largest deals so far.  There are nine

         22  concluded deals spending approximately $16 million

         23  of that local money, leaving a very large ward chest

         24  and giving the environmentalists a significance and

         25  powerful seat at the Land Acquisition table. And DEP
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          2  has taken its seat as well, with two very

          3  significant deals.

          4                 Firstly, a million dollar investment

          5  and a 387 acre parcel that is attached in a story in

          6  the testimony that I have given you.  They leveraged

          7  $3,000 an acre into a very significant commitment

          8  towards an $8 million project.

          9                 We are hoping and anticipating that

         10  would lead to a, that is the Somers project you are

         11  looking at, the one on the back page is the project

         12  in Lewisboro.  We are hoping and anticipating that

         13  that would lead to more partnership projects. And

         14  within months, the City signed on for a commitment

         15  to what is one of the largest open space parcels

         16  left in the Croton System, in Westchester County,

         17  for certain 654- acres.  They are leveraging $9

         18  million of investment into a $20.5 million

         19  acquisition for absolutely amazing territory, a

         20  mile- square, a very significant parcel in the heart

         21  of the Croton Watershed in the town of Somers.

         22                 I want to say that I believe that DEP

         23  is interested in continuing this partnership.  And I

         24  think that we are going to do everything in our

         25  power to make sure that the other members of the
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          2  partnerships, in Somers it was the Town of Somers,

          3  the State of New York, the City of New York, and the

          4  County of Westchester, in Lewisboro it was private

          5  citizens, the Town of Lewisboro, and the City of New

          6  York, we are going to do everything we can to make

          7  sure there are more such partnerships And I believe

          8  the DEP is entirely willing.  They are a willing

          9  buyer, I believe.

         10                 Of course it is important to have a

         11  continuous, and renewable, and dependable source of

         12  funds for Croton acquisition.  With the time I have

         13  left to me, I am going to raise what I consider to

         14  be the forgotten man of the acquisition and

         15  preservation program.  And that is watershed

         16  regulation and the DEP's approach to development.

         17                 Now development is not bad and it is

         18  not good.  It is bad when it is poorly proposed.

         19  And it is good when it is well proposed.

         20  Westchester Land Trust, itself, has been involved in

         21  over 20 projects, involving nearly 500 units of

         22  housing, and 420 acres of preservation.  So we are

         23  anything but development diverse.  We do not like

         24  bad development, but we feel that if we do not see

         25  some good development the pot is going to blow at

                                                            148

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  some point, in regard to housing prices, in regard

          3  to where people are going to live.

          4                 DEP has made some very intelligent

          5  and insightful comments on various projects, such as

          6  those summarized in my testimony.  And I will only

          7  mention one.  And that is the project, again, in

          8  Somers known as Windsor Farms, where working with

          9  the developer and town supervisor, and the town

         10  planning board, the DEP succeeded in having all

         11  three units in that proposal removed to a small 30-

         12  acre area, outside the New York City Watershed, with

         13  the remaining 70 acres going into Town ownerships

         14  with easements to the Westchester Land Trust.  So,

         15  there is a project in which there was a transfer of

         16  development rights, and a clustering of development

         17  outside the watershed.

         18                 Conservation easements, of course, is

         19  another very important technique.  And I think that

         20  we are very proud to see that the local

         21  municipalities that have all enacted this new level

         22  of infrastructure and spending on open space

         23  preservation, it has led to a commensurate increase

         24  in the number of private citizens donating easement.

         25    In our first 15 years, first 12 years, we have
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          2  protected about 1,000- acres.  In the last five

          3  years, we have protected another 1,800- acres, most

          4  of that through easements.

          5                 So I am here to say that in the

          6  Croton Watershed there is both a need, the growth in

          7  the Croton Watershed has been extraordinary over the

          8  last 20 years.  In one decade alone, Westchester

          9  lost 25 percent of its undeveloped, privately- owned

         10  land.  There is a need.  The multi- barrier approach

         11  requires land acquisition.  You cannot solve the

         12  problems of pollution of the Croton System just by

         13  filtration.  You need land preservation and other

         14  techniques because there are many pollutants that

         15  filtration does not even get at.  And the flooding

         16  in the New Jersey regions that suffered such

         17  terrible flooding in the last several months, shows

         18  what happens if you over- build a watershed. It will

         19  have significant adverse effects on the watershed if

         20  we allow the Croton to built- out.

         21                 So, finally, I will say that if we do

         22  not take the opportunities we have before us now,

         23  and if we do not continue these partnerships, and

         24  really hybridize, you all passed a wonderful law

         25  about hybrid vehicles not so long ago, if we do not

                                                            150

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  hybridize this program and make the Croton

          3  Preservation stand up and really take on three

          4  dimensions, we will be missing a terrible

          5  opportunity to our great detriment.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  thank you, Paul. David.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON:  Well, I want to thank

         10  you for this hearing.  I was called.  I mentioned

         11  that I might be talking about the Croton.  And I

         12  said that was okay.  So, I am here.  We support

         13  Intro. 626, very definitely.  We are interested in

         14  protecting the water supply.  And we feel that,

         15  maybe Croton is kind of like the Czechoslovakia of

         16  this whole battle to protect. One of our groups is

         17  the Catskill Heritage Alliance, which is fighting

         18  the Bellview situation and very opposed.

         19                 People that live in the Catskill, by

         20  the way, I have many friends there, I grew up there.

         21    We did bad stuff in the past, no question about

         22  it.  I heard horrible stories.  But there are a lot

         23  of people up there that are not so opposed to us,

         24  that are not really represented by the Watershed

         25  Towns groups, because they are not into real estate.
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          2    They are into living in their communities, and

          3  they want to maintain their communities.

          4                 And in the Croton, it is unbelievable

          5  the amount of support that watershed protection has,

          6  that the DEP has not taken advantage of.  That we go

          7  to meetings, the head of our group, Marian Rose, is

          8  up there right now, she cannot be here because she

          9  is up there fighting against Fairfield Connecticut

         10  Ballfield, that is going to have disastrous soil

         11  effects on the great swamp.  And we do that on a

         12  daily basis, the people in our group, in

         13  Westchester, in Putnam.  And we would like the

         14  support of DEP to come up there and help them help

         15  us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How about the

         17  bill.  I need you to talk on the bill, though.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON:  Okay, the bill is

         19  about land, right.  And land is costly.  We are

         20  spending $1.5 billion on the filtration plant, when

         21  we have a better plant that we can build within the

         22  exact EPA consent agree parameters.  We can build a

         23  membrane filtration plant.  And save $500, $600

         24  million, and have a better plant that will actually

         25  even reach down to the virus level, to the chemical
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          2  level.  This plant will not.

          3                 So, when Dave Tweedy says to us, or

          4  at the Water Board that I was at the other day, and

          5  he said, well the reason we are doing this, is it is

          6  proven technology.  That is a little like saying in

          7  the 1960's that with all the jets that Boeing is

          8  putting out, the 707s, their propellers are a proven

          9  technology. There are more plants now, by, and you

         10  will see some testimony later, that are membrane

         11  than they are DAF.  This is an obsolete plant.  And

         12  it is costly.  And we can use that money that we are

         13  spending 20 times more than the original watershed

         14  agreement came up with to buy land in the Croton.

         15  Twenty times more to pay for park improvements all

         16  out through the Bronx, like playgrounds and stuff,

         17  which is illegal and it is unnecessary, and the tax

         18  is regressive.  And there is no reason that we

         19  cannot use that money to buy land to protect the

         20  Croton.  Rather than build a plant, and get the

         21  people in the Bronx.  That was all used to get the

         22  politicians in the Bronx- -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I will give you

         24  60 more seconds of latitude on this, but you are way

         25  off where you need to be.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON:  Well, you know Jim, I

          3  will tell you something.  We are very frustrated.

          4  We have tried, and I worked with your office to try

          5  to have a hearing on the Croton.  We never have had

          6  it.  It is related to this and I was invited to

          7  speak.  And I absolutely support it.  There is

          8  another issue related to that in terms of the taxes

          9  that Jim Tripp mentioned, the $100 million a year.

         10                 You know the people that have come

         11  from the communities up there, we do not have kids

         12  up there.  We do not have infrastructure demands,

         13  and so forth.  We are a bargain. And I know people

         14  up there that are happy when DEP buys property next

         15  to them, because it protects their, this is an

         16  aspect that is never dealt with.  And I never hear,

         17  that we get credit for that sewer retrofit program.

         18  That is a terrific thing.  And we are spending more

         19  money.  So I mean there is a balance here between

         20  this issue of, and this is related to the 626, in

         21  terms of the kind of argument that, oh my goodness

         22  if you do this, you are throwing open the whole

         23  watershed agreement again.  I do not believe that.

         24  I really do not.  I mean, there are issues.  I

         25  remember Eric Goldstein, many years ago, when
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          2  Stanley was the Chair, and I have it actually on

          3  tape.  And he said to the City Council, he said,

          4  this was just before the Watershed Agreement was

          5  done, never has so much money been spent with so

          6  little oversight.  And there is a place for the City

          7  Council.  But otherwise what we have is the EPA puts

          8  a mandate on the City. And the City and the EPA work

          9  it out.  And we as ratepayers, and as water

         10  consumers have no representation in this filtration

         11  without representation.

         12                 And so, I am very glad to see,

         13  because the Land Use is directly related to the

         14  filtration problem.  And as Paul just said, and the

         15  City towns down there, they are coming out and

         16  putting money up themselves for property.  So why

         17  can't we come and at least, because there are

         18  critical parcels there.

         19                 I mean there is Eagle River, you know

         20  that is one of the ones that the City came in on,

         21  very good.  But they do not come up to the hearings.

         22    They do not support the people up there.  They

         23  come up and they start on terrorist, they will say

         24  bad things.  And then the people will correct them.

         25  And they will say fine.  And it is a disastrous
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          2  project that went through. You know, I know a lot of

          3  detail we can't time here.  But without the

          4  watershed protection that we can do, to reinforce

          5  the land purchase, they need to work together on

          6  this, these two aspects of the watershed protection

          7  plan.

          8                 So, where the problem is, really,

          9  that very often we run into these hearings, right,

         10  and understandably, you want to keep focus.  And you

         11  want to focus on the material, we can all talk about

         12  anything, right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         14                 MR. FERGUSON:  But there is another

         15  side to that. You focus on things so much that you

         16  compartmentalize things so much that you never get

         17  the interconnectiveness and overall picture, and it

         18  is never treated.  And I, for one, have felt

         19  constantly pushed off to the side, so that by the

         20  time I am talking about, well do you like this

         21  aspect of this law, we are talking about things that

         22  have larger objectives.  And those objectives are as

         23  important, at least, as the details, which are

         24  important too.

         25                 So, I just want to, also in passing
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          2  on the Kensico, by the way, DEP built a dog run

          3  right next to the main reservoir that has 90 percent

          4  of our water.  No, you did not build a dog run.

          5  Okay.  That is what I heard.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You know, you

          7  could approach DEP will take it up with you.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: Well no, this is

          9  something that public, if it is true- -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is on the

         11  record.  They are here for you to talk to

         12  afterwards.

         13                 MR. FERGUSON:  I heard that it was

         14  true.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, no, no, I

         16  have got to bring this back.  David I need you to

         17  conclude.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON:  Okay.  Well, I will

         19  conclude by saying the last paragraph of the

         20  statement which you have.  And that is, membrane is

         21  more efficient and vastly less expensive, takes no

         22  park land, won't threaten the health of Bronx

         23  residents, requires a fraction of the power, offers

         24  better security, and a more dependably safe water

         25  supply at a significantly reduced operation cost.
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          2  The plant can be designed and built within the

          3  constraints of the Consent Decree.

          4                 DEP has yet to produce any credible

          5  evidence that it has ever done due diligence in

          6  evaluating current membrane technology.  Damage to

          7  the park can be repaired.  Damage to the health and

          8  safety and affordability to our water supply, should

          9  the park plant be built, cannot be undone.  Doesn't

         10  this great city, whose water system's the envy of

         11  the world, deserve the best?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  David, thank

         14  you, thank you.

         15                 MS. HARTIG:  Thank you Councilman and

         16  everyone here.  I am talking about Wetlands today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please state

         18  you name for the record, please?

         19                 MS. HARTIG:  I am Ellen Kracauer

         20  Hartig, professional Wetlands Scientist in and

         21  around New York City.  And I support the legislation

         22  because it will give new opportunities to protect

         23  Wetlands that buffer the lakes and streams, and feed

         24  the reservoirs that are part of our drinking water

         25  supply.  And there is new urgency for the City to
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          2  try to further protection of Wetlands, which it can

          3  do through land acquisition.

          4                 At this time, we have state

          5  regulations and federal regulations to protect

          6  Wetlands.  The state protects only those that are

          7  12.4 acres in size, or have distinguishing features

          8  that make them have unusual importance.  The

          9  advantage to having the state well, is it includes a

         10  100- foot buffer, but it is restricted to that size

         11  issue.  Where as the Federal government can protect

         12  Wetlands that are 1/4 acre in size, and larger.

         13  They have jurisdiction over those lands, even if it

         14  is in private hands.  But enforcement is often

         15  problematic.  Many Wetlands are filled each year.

         16                 So, your proposal to have a goal of a

         17  set amount of land each year, will indeed protect

         18  those Wetlands that support the water supply.  And

         19  their value is in filtering pollutants, controlling

         20  flood waters during and after storms, and providing

         21  habitat for birds and other wildlife, recreation and

         22  aesthetics.  And for the water state lands it is of

         23  course, it is so important that the soils in

         24  Wetlands can bind pollutants, that the soils can

         25  hold the pollutants in place, and then those
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          2  pollutants do not go onto your reservoirs.

          3                 So, generally, I just want to state

          4  the importance of having a way for the City to

          5  protect Wetlands when the City does not have any of

          6  its own regulations to protect Wetlands. Again, it

          7  is dependent on the State and the Federal

          8  Government.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         11  Thank you, Ellen I appreciate you being here.

         12                 MR. WILSON:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Craig Wilson, and I am here from the New York

         14  League of Conservation Voters, where I am the

         15  Director of New York City Policy and Advocacy.

         16                 I have shortened my comments, to

         17  allow for your three- minute rule, or maybe it is

         18  shortening the time frame.  But nonetheless, you

         19  have my full comments in writing.

         20                 On behalf of the League, I am here

         21  today to support Intro. 626s provision, that would

         22  establish a goal for acquiring 75,000 acres of land

         23  within the Catskill/Delaware Watershed, from 2007

         24  through 2017.

         25                 The City's Watershed Acquisition
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          2  Program has been successful in protecting over

          3  60,000 acres of watershed land since the program

          4  began in 1997.  This has been accomplished on a

          5  willing buyer/willing seller, basis, which

          6  appropriately would continue under the proposed

          7  legislation.  The League supports the continuation

          8  of the Land Acquisition Program for another ten

          9  years, and believes that a ten- year goal of

         10  purchasing land or securing easements for 75,000

         11  acres is reasonable, since that is the rate that the

         12  existing program has been achieving, and since the

         13  renewed ten- year program would likely be able to

         14  take greater advantage of conservation easements

         15  instead of outright purchases.

         16                 Additionally, I want to add two other

         17  comments. We also support the legislation's

         18  provisions that would continue DEPs current level of

         19  effort in staffing and funding, for the agency's

         20  Land Acquisition program over the next ten- year

         21  period.

         22                 And finally, we support the bill's

         23  provisions that would continue watershed land

         24  acquisition in the Croton System. Even with

         25  filtration it is necessary to continue with
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          2  extensive watershed protection programs.  And we

          3  urge the Council to act swiftly, and to pass these

          4  provisions into law.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          7  Thank you.  I wish to thank the entire panel, you

          8  know, time will not permit me to, you know, engage

          9  you in questions and comments.  But I do, you know,

         10  a very diverse panel that we have here, but you are

         11  all champions in like the specific niche that you

         12  occupy.  And we are grateful and honored that you

         13  are here with us.  Thank you. Thank you all very

         14  much.

         15                 The last panel, Carolyn Summers of

         16  the Federated Conservationists of Westchester

         17  County, and Fay Muir of the CWCWC.  Anyone who

         18  remains in the audience who may wish to be heard,

         19  this would be the time to take your place at the

         20  panel. Anybody else who wishes to be heard?

         21                 Thank you very much, we will have

         22  Donna De Costanzo swear you in, and then we can

         23  proceed.

         24                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         25  right hand. In the testimony that you are about to
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          2  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          3  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          4                 MS. MUIR:  Yes, I do.

          5                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          7  Thank you.  I guess in which ever order you wish to

          8  proceed.  Just state your name for the record and

          9  commence your testimony.

         10                 MS. SUMMERS:  Good afternoon,

         11  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Committee.  My

         12  name is Carolyn Summers and I am a member of

         13  Federated Conservationists of Westchester County, a

         14  non- profit environmental coalition of over 50

         15  member organizations and hundreds of individuals,

         16  with a long history of active support for the City's

         17  Water Quality Program.

         18                 My professional involvement with New

         19  York City's water supply dates to the early 1990s,

         20  when as Assistant Commissioner for Natural

         21  Resources, I was privileged to be a part of the New

         22  York City DEP team.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With Alpern

         24  (phonetic)? With Alpern?  You were with Bob Alpern?

         25                 MS. SUMMERS:  Bob Alpern, Appleton.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, no, but

          3  Alpern was the Natural Resources guy back then,

          4  right.  Wasn't he?

          5                 MS. SUMMERS:  Yes.  Well he was

          6  actually the Senior Advisor to the Commissioner at

          7  the time, I was Assistant Commissioner.  He was

          8  Senior Advisor and I was.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pardon me.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 MS. SUMMERS:  Okay.  People move

         12  around.  That began the implementation of the City's

         13  Watershed Land Acquisition Project.  I am currently

         14  also a land owner in the Catskill, and

         15  unfortunately, I see the negative impacts of

         16  unplanned development in the watershed on a regular

         17  basis.  I am also a New York City water consumer.  I

         18  live in Hastings on Hudson, our water comes from New

         19  York City's water supply.

         20                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         21  testify in support of Intro. No. 626, the New York

         22  City Water Supply Protection Act. The sponsors of

         23  this legislation are to be commended for the vision

         24  and leadership, embodied in this critical proposal.

         25  The intention of the proposed legislation is to
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          2  maintain the current high quality of our drinking

          3  water by preserving the forests, wetlands, and other

          4  undeveloped lands that systematically cleanse and

          5  purify it.

          6                 This legislation would extend the

          7  City's current Land Acquisition Program by providing

          8  explicit, achievable goal to acquire 75,000 acres

          9  over ten years, together with the funding necessary

         10  to implement that goal.  This is the single most

         11  effective step to take.

         12                 Even with this goal in place serious

         13  obstacles remain.  Recent events have caused a run

         14  up in land prices, and rampant speculation.  Current

         15  land prices are five to ten times higher than 1997

         16  levels.  As one example, just one example, last

         17  summer a 20- acre parcel right on the Neversink

         18  River sold for $200,000.  The word on Catskill

         19  streets, and again this is perception, I am not

         20  talking about my own opinion, but this is the

         21  perception out there, is that the City's appraisers

         22  are not keeping up with the recent comparables and

         23  are offering unrealistically low prices.

         24  Consequently, many sellers are not willing to

         25  participate in the City's Land Acquisition process.
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          2                 In the coming years, the City's Land

          3  Acquisition staff will need to be far more

          4  aggressive and innovative, as they race the

          5  speculators for a dwindling supply of available land

          6  parcels.  Higher prices combined with the long

          7  history of distrust on the part of Catskill

          8  residents towards City officials argue for the use

          9  of intermediaries, especially in the development of

         10  conservation easements.

         11                 Land trusts are ideally suited for

         12  this type of time consuming negotiations necessary

         13  to bring easements to fruition.  The City's current

         14  policy of take it or leave it easement contracts,

         15  does not sit well with most sellers of easements,

         16  who are essentially letting themselves in for a

         17  lifetime partnership of water quality stewardship

         18  with the City.           The Watershed Agricultural

         19  Easements Program higher rate of success is at least

         20  partially due to its increased flexibility.  It

         21  would be extremely useful if the authors of this

         22  legislation could offer DEP more specific direction

         23  on ways to increase the number of easements

         24  acquired.

         25                 On Kensico, there is no specific
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          2  mention of acquisition at Kensico Reservoir.  This

          3  is the weakest link in the entire Cat/Del System.

          4  Please consider adding a specific goal for Kensico.

          5                 Croton.  I strongly support Section

          6  24- 369B, which directs DEP to continue acquiring

          7  land in the Croton Watershed. While upfront costs

          8  are higher in Croton, the long- term investment is

          9  real, even for a system facing filtration.  At

         10  present, Croton has only marginal, seasonal

         11  problems.  Further deterioration from increased

         12  development would exponentially increase filtration

         13  costs.

         14                 Recreation.  Section 24- 369C,

         15  proposes "expanded recreational opportunities,

         16  provided such activities are compatible with

         17  watershed and water quality protection."  This is

         18  the ultimate slippery slope.  I would respectively

         19  suggest that the authors revisit this language.  A

         20  review of the recreational policies of other

         21  municipal water suppliers might be useful. Strictly

         22  speaking, the only truly compatible activity, at

         23  least in the sense of neutrally beneficial, is deer

         24  hunting, because hunters are actively removing

         25  possible sources of contaminants. All other
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          2  activities may be more or less harmful, but the

          3  level of harm is dependent on the level of use.

          4  Once use is allowed, it is extremely difficult and

          5  in some cases unlawful to limit it. Watershed lands

          6  closer to the City are clearly more vulnerable to

          7  overuse.  The long- term costs of overuse of water

          8  supply lands needs to be carefully considered.

          9                 Watershed Police.  Lastly I commend

         10  the authors of this legislation for addressing the

         11  security needs of the water supply system,

         12  especially as regards adequate compensation and

         13  other resources for the critically important

         14  Watershed Police Force.  At the same time the

         15  mission of watershed police expanded from addressing

         16  threats to infrastructure to include threats to

         17  water quality, compensation lagged.  I strongly

         18  support the mission and need for fair compensation

         19  as stated in Section 24 369A.

         20                 Thank you, Chairman Gennaro, Speaker

         21  Gifford, co sponsors, and members of your staff for

         22  initiating this legislation and for giving me the

         23  opportunity to comment.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  thank you very much.  Yes, I will have a comment
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          2  once Fay is finished.

          3                 MS. MUIR:  My name is Fay Muir and I

          4  am with the Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition.

          5  And I am going to read a statement by President

          6  Marian Rose, who was unable to be with us today.

          7                  "To the Honorable Members of the

          8  Committee on Environmental Protection of the Council

          9  of the City of New York. RE:  Introduction No. 626.

         10                 The Croton Watershed Clean Water

         11  Coalition thanks you for this opportunity to comment

         12  on the above- referenced legislation that would help

         13  to protect the integrity of the New York City

         14  drinking water supply and the security of its

         15  infrastructure.

         16                 Over half the population of New York

         17  State depends on New York City's incomparable water

         18  supply for its drinking water.  Nothing could be

         19  more important for the future of this area and,

         20  indeed the state, than protecting this still

         21  unfiltered water supply from pollution, and securing

         22  its infrastructure.

         23                 Therefore, we endorse Intro. No. 626

         24  insofar as it promotes buying land in the

         25  Catskill/Delaware watershed.  The authors of this
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          2  bill recognize that, given the superior quality of

          3  the water, it is far more effective to protect it at

          4  the source than to allow it to become polluted and

          5  then require expensive remediation through chemical

          6  means.  Indeed, watershed protection is awarded a

          7  pathogen removal rate of 0.5 log.

          8                 There are other advantages.  For

          9  example, good source water requires no expensive

         10  maintenance, only protection. An overriding problem

         11  that has arisen since September 11th, is how best to

         12  protect a water treatment plant from a terrorist

         13  attack.  By contrast, the dispersed nature of the

         14  watershed itself precludes any one- time blow that

         15  could knock out the whole system.

         16                 The bill's proposal to acquire by fee

         17  simple or through conservation easements at least

         18  75,000 acres within the Catskill/Delaware watershed

         19  from 2007 to 2017 is one that the Watershed

         20  Coalition fully endorses.

         21                 Turning now to the Croton, we find a

         22  very different picture.  Here, the bill states that

         23   "the Department shall vigorously pursue watershed

         24  protection and land acquisition efforts".  To this

         25  end the Department only recommends "an allocation of
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          2  funds necessary for land and easement acquisition in

          3  the Croton Watershed, to be used to match funds

          4  allocated by county and local governments within the

          5  Croton Watershed or any land trust or other private

          6  entity in acquiring watershed parcels of particular

          7  importance to water quality protection."

          8                 This half- hearted attempt at land

          9  acquisition stands in sharp contrast to the Cat/Del

         10  program.  Since 1997, DEP has acquired only about

         11  550 acres in the Croton portion of the East of

         12  Hudson Watershed, although many more acres have been

         13  acquired in areas that protect the Catskill/Delaware

         14  reservoirs. Perhaps, this Committee does not realize

         15  that developers have acquired at least seven times

         16  that amount, 3,500 acres in the Croton Watershed,

         17  mostly in Putnam County.  Watershed residents are

         18  heroically trying to protect their remaining open

         19  space but are receiving next to no help from DEP.

         20  In the end, the water in those reservoirs will be

         21  degraded, and thousands of residents throughout

         22  Westchester and Putnam will be faced with unhealthy

         23  drinking water.

         24                 The proposal for the Croton raises

         25  the following questions.  Since all the Watershed
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          2  towns in Westchester have already designated funds

          3  for land acquisition and it is a probable that

          4  Putnam will endorse a $20 million bond referendum

          5  for land acquisition to be voted on in this year's

          6  November election, will these funds be matched by

          7  DEP, or will more funds have to be raised?

          8                 Another question pertains to the

          9  allocation of DEP's matching funds.  Assume a town

         10  raises $1 million to acquire land.  Will DEP's

         11  matching fund be given to that town or towards some

         12  other acquisition in the watershed?  The bill does

         13  not clearly spell this out.

         14                 Also, about two years ago, DEP set

         15  aside about $25 million for land acquisition in the

         16  Croton.  Are these funds to be used for their

         17  original purpose or will they be used as matching

         18  funds for local initiatives in purchasing watershed

         19  land?

         20                 Keeping source water clean not only

         21  affects Croton Watershed residents.  Let's remember

         22  that DEP will have to rely increasingly on Croton

         23  water when the Delaware aqueduct is shut down to

         24  repair the 45 million gallons a day leak that has

         25  been increasing over the last 10 years or more.
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          2  Let's also bear in mind that the Croton Water

          3  Treatment Plant in Van Cortlandt Park has

          4  insufficient electrical backup power to purify the

          5  water in the case of a calamitous power outage, or a

          6  terrorist attack that knocks out the plant.  If the

          7  source water in the Croton is not protected, this

          8  untreated water will be unsafe for drinking,

          9  cooking, and bathing.  Croton water users in New

         10  York City will be in serious trouble.

         11                 The Watershed Coalition has estimated

         12  that $200 million would go a long way towards

         13  purchasing the necessary land and acquiring

         14  conservation easements to protect the reservoirs and

         15  the source of water in the Croton Watershed.  With

         16  local sentiment running high against the rapid

         17  disappearance of open space, New York City would

         18  find strong support among the citizenry that would

         19  make such protection possible.  We urge this

         20  Committee to include this expenditure in the

         21  proposed bill.

         22                 Thank you for holding these hearings.

         23                 Marian Rose

         24                 President of the Croton Watershed

         25  Clean Water Coalition."
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Fay, I appreciate you being here today.

          4  And please give our best to Marian and all the good

          5  folks at the CWCWC who have done so much to advocate

          6  most forcefully, and most effective for the Croton.

          7  We truly appreciate your presence here today and the

          8  comments you made in your statement.

          9                 And Ms. Summers, it is nice to become

         10  acquainted with you.  And you made very, very

         11  specific comments in your statement, which I believe

         12  are most helpful.  And so I thank you for, you know,

         13  giving us the benefit of your views here today, and

         14  all of your past service- -

         15                 MS. SUMMERS:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - - to the City

         17  through your work with DEP.  You know it is nice to

         18  make your acquaintance.  Come back and visit us.  We

         19  appreciate it.  And thank you, thank you all.  And

         20  with no one else wishing to be heard, hang on.  I

         21  have to make a statement here.  We had some

         22  testimony submitted for the record, Acting

         23  Commissioner Denise Sheehan of the New York State

         24  DEC, Bill Harding of the New York City Watershed

         25  Protection and Partnership Council, and Andrea
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          2  Miller for Carolyn Zolas, who is Chair of the

          3  Watershed Committee of the Sierra Club, Atlantic

          4  Chapter.

          5                 So no one else wishing to be heard, I

          6  thank everyone for coming.  And this hearing is

          7  adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing adjourned at 4:55 p.m.)

          9

         10                 (The following testimony was read

         11  into the record.)

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14

         15  William C. Harding

         16  Executive Director

         17  New York City Watershed Protection and Partnership

         18  Council

         19

         20                 Mr. Chairman, Council members, ladies

         21  and gentlemen, good afternoon.  My name is William

         22  C. Harding, and I am the Executive Director of the

         23  New York City Watershed Protection and Partnership

         24  Council.

         25                 By way of brief background, the
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          2  Watershed Council was created by the historic 1997

          3  Watershed Agreement to provide a regional forum to

          4  aid in the long- term protection of New York City's

          5  drinking water, and the social and economic vitality

          6  of the Upstate Watershed communities.  Consisting of

          7  representatives from various Watershed stakeholders,

          8  including the City Council, ably represented by

          9  Councilman Gennaro, the Watershed Council represents

         10  a broad- based, diverse group of interests, and

         11  continues to bring the parties together as partners

         12  to share information and reports of progress, as

         13  well as to identify issues of concern.

         14                 Please allow me to commend the City

         15  Council, and particularly the members of this

         16  Committee, for it's longstanding and proactive

         17  involvement in furtherance of the stated goals of

         18  the Watershed Agreement.  Your inclusiveness and

         19  desire to inform go to the very heart of the success

         20  of this great partnership.

         21                 Since 1997, all the partners in the

         22  New York City Watershed have worked hard to ensure

         23  the success of the Agreement.  On the water quality

         24  side, the federal Environmental Protection Agency,

         25  and the State of New York continually examine the
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          2  ways in which the City is protecting its water, and

          3  the EPA has already renewed the City's Filtration

          4  Avoidance Determination, allowing water from the

          5  City's two largest supply areas, the Catskill and

          6  Delaware Systems, to remain unfiltered.

          7                 With respect to the partnership

          8  program aspects of the Agreement, while some as yet

          9  unrealized opportunities remain, we have seen an

         10  unprecedented array of initiatives begun or

         11  accomplished.  Whether it be educating our children

         12  about how they can help keep water clean, to

         13  providing financial support to Watershed businesses,

         14  to solving the thorny issues of environmentally

         15  sensitive growth, to creating and testing state of

         16  the art pollution protection measures, it is evident

         17  that we have come far, together.

         18                 But with all of the triumphant

         19  technology, science, and skilled stewardship, it is

         20  partnership that remains at the core of this

         21  resounding success.  In fact, it is my fervent

         22  belief that an undertaking as far reaching as

         23  protecting New York City's water, and preserving the

         24  communities within its watershed, could not work

         25  without such a partnership as ours.
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          2                 The importance of succeeding with

          3  this innovative approach cannot be understated.  New

          4  York City and dozens of downstate communities simply

          5  could not exist without a safe drinking water

          6  supply, let along prosper.  An inability to avoid

          7  filtration would mean saddling New York City rate

          8  payers with a multi- billion dollar burden from

          9  which they would not escape for generations, if

         10  ever.  Upstate Watershed communities need to thrive

         11  in order to provide the level of stewardship

         12  required to protect this unparalleled resource.

         13                 As one of the negotiators of the

         14  Watershed Agreement, I was privileged to witness its

         15  evolution first hand. Looking back, it was apparent

         16  then that a typical regulatory structure might be a

         17  difficult methodology to employ in the New York City

         18  Watershed.  Today, the many successes achieved in

         19  the Watershed bear witness to the value of

         20  partnership, and urge caution with respect to the

         21  more traditional approach of legislation and

         22  litigation.

         23                 It is thus in that very spirit of

         24  cooperation and partnership that I urge this good

         25  Council to proceed in this matter.  As previously
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          2  stated, your many contributions have helped to

          3  create a process of healthy give and take, of

          4  communication and assistance, of periodic

          5  examination, assessment and adjustment.  That

          6  process is in place, and working.  Soon, EPA, New

          7  York State, and other partners will again analyze

          8  the adequacy of all of our efforts, and will ask us

          9  all to suggest ways that we can do it better.  Just

         10  as that process proved fruitful in 2002, I am

         11  confident that it will again serve to advance the

         12  level of protection, and partnership, that this

         13  remarkable Watershed Agreement deserves.

         14                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         15  comment in this matter, and stand ready to provide

         16  additional assistance or information should you so

         17  desire.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 4:55 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 17th day of May 2005.
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                                   ---------------------

         23                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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